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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”)
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)
BRBAERZAARIB (MBI AIER (T RIRR ] 2558

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on
the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sau San
Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
of the Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors
of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive; (2) there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein
or in this report misleading.
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CORPORATE PROFILE A BN

Founded in~July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as one of the
leading beauty and slimming services providers in Hong Kong and
Mainland China over the past years through the introduction of a
series of innovative health and beauty treatment and products as
well as the provision of the most professional and superior beauty
and slimming solution to our customers. The Group was listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (Stock Code: 8200) in November 2003 and is the
first listed beauty and slimming company in Hong Kong.

The Group currently has eight beauty and slimming centres with
three in Hong Kong and five in Mainland China including two in
Beijing, two in Shanghai and one in Shenzhen. All these centers
provide unique all-rounded personalized beauty and slimming
services, health management and anti-ageing treatment programs
etc.. Combining the effective treatments and comprehensive follow
up, all programmes enable customers to achieve their desired skin
quality, weight and body shape in the healthiest manner.

The Group has been widely recognized and highly praised for
its outstanding products and services, the Group was proud
to receive “My Favorite Wellness Treatment 2015 - Beauty &
Slimming Centre Category” by Jessica Magazine, and is honoured
to be the “Caring Company” for seven consecutive years.

To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a
distribution business in Mainland China in 2005, which distributes
P&G’s personal care products in Shanghai, and cosmetic and
skin care products with famous brands like SK-II and Olay in
the eastern and western part of Mainland China. With years of
development, the distribution network is well developed and
with the additions of international famous brands, the growth of
turnover as well as the number of distribution points is impressive.

In June 2010, the Group appointed a consultant to develop the
Group’s franchise co-operation business in Mainland China.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CORPORATE PROFILE A TN

In recent years, the Group realized that e-Commerce is flourishing
but the beauty and slimming market is still untapped, the business
potential is unpredictable. Therefore, starting from 2012, the
Group invests in developing an one-stop online booking platform
at www.beautyu.com to pave the way for entering into the
e-Commerce new Era.

In March 2015, the Group commenced a new business segment
of investment in securities, with a view that such business will
diversify the income stream of the Group and broaden its revenue
base. It may also improve the capital usage efficiency and
generate additional investment returns on the idle funds of the
Company.

With the existing beauty and slimming business, product
distribution business, franchise co-operation business and
e-Commerce business, the Group is well-equipped to provide the
best-in-class services to our customers.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

AEBIFERUE

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Net unrealised gains on financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Other revenue and net income

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative
expenses

Profit/(loss) from operations
Finance costs

Share of (losses)/profits of joint
ventures

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Income tax expense
Profit/(loss) for the year

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Net current assets

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-If —T-mF -“E-=F —E--F “E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
1,461,856 1,362,916 1,141,662 1,039,785 627,537
(1,335,614) (1,189,750) (974,098) (861,630) (536,634)
126,242 173,166 167,564 178,155 90,903
86,400 - - - -
18,225 19,355 4,686 6,787 1,180
(80,620 (85,050) (83,863) (79,062) (67,066)
(97,964) (85,209 (71,829) (69,429) (68,727)
52,283 22,248 16,558 36,451 (43,710)
(4,424) (3,647) (1,798) (2,008) (1,337)
(2,047) (3,669) 668 (76) (483)
45,812 14,932 15,428 34,367 (45,530)
(7,818) (7,287) (7,870) (7,847) (2,503)
37,994 7,645 7,558 26,520 (48,033)
34,809 41,715 42,252 28,290 33,809
560,996 368,899 290,301 255,492 198,553
(169,054) (162,776) (162,435) (135,819) (92,829)
391,942 206,123 127,866 119,673 100,724
(41,456) (70,078) (20,837 (5,593) (23,127)
385,295 177,760 149,281 142,370 111,406
366,541 153,400 125,514 118,988 91,774
18,754 24,360 23,767 23,382 19,632
385,295 177,760 149,281 142,370 111,406
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE#HE

| am pleased to present the annual report for the year ended 31
March 2015 (the “Year Under Review”) to the shareholders of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) on behalf of the board of
Directors (the “Board”).

This year is the Group’s 15th anniversary since its establishment.
It is a historical moment which we are proud of. It is also an
opportunity for retrospection and review through which we learn
from the past and prepare for our long-term development in
the future. During the Year Under Review, we have grasped the
uniqgue opportunities which are immensely significant to the Group.

The Year Under Review has been a year of challenges to both the
Group and the Hong Kong retail and services sector as a whole.
During the Year Under Review, a series of unforeseeable events
have hurt the local economy and consumers’ confidence to a
certain degree. Subsequent to the unrest triggered by political
reform controversies in last October, a number of factors have
been adversely affecting the overall number of incoming mainland
visitors (especially those from the Southern China region) and their
purchasing power, which contributed to the weak performance
of sales activities in Hong Kong. Meanwhile, despite the slight
improvement in the global economy, the economy of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) continued to slow down. The growth
of GDP for the year was only 7.4%, which is a new low in more
than 20 years. On top of relatively more conservative sentiments
towards consumption in China as a whole, the banks also
tightened their lending, undermining the purchasing power of the
young consumers. For the above reasons, these unforeseeable
events and the weak consumption sentiments in China have
damaged the performance of the Group’s beauty and slimming
business in both Hong Kong and China, and prevented the Group
from attaining its planned sales targets for the year, resulting in
less desirable revenue and performance in this business segment
as compared with the previous year. In spite of the multiple
challenges faced by the business environment in the retail market,
the Group’s product distribution business managed to perform
satisfactorily, with turnover increased by 12.6% from approximately
HK$1,241,842,000 in the previous year to approximately
HK$1,398,485,000 in the Year Under Review.

As mentioned above, the Year Under Review is significant to
the Group’s long term development. At the end of 2014, the
Group invited a new member with years of experience in financial
investment to join the Board. He wishes to contribute his
professional knowledge and experience to the Group in order to
maximise the return of the Group and its shareholders. To this
end, the Group started a new business segment in securities
investment in March 2015. It is expected that the Company’s

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CHAIBMAN’S ISTATEMENT EfE#H 4%

share valueCan be enhanced and the overall interests of the
Group.and its shareholders can be maximised, through long-term
and-<short-term investments in listed securities in Hong Kong and
overseas markets, as well as investments in wealth management
products provided by banks and other financial institutions.

The Group has been endeavoring to explore opportunities
in the beauty and slimming business so as to strengthen its
market leadership in the business sector. For this reason, at the
beginning of 2015, the Group has entered into a memorandum of
understanding with an individual independent third party in relation
to a possible acquisition of the entire issued share capital of a
limited company which principally engaged in the operation of a
beauty centre for the provision of slimming and beauty services
in Hong Kong. The acquisition was completed before the date of
this annual report. With the acquisition, | look forward to bringing
new impetus and synergies to the growth of the Group, as well
as expanding the customer base of the Group, diversifying the
business portfolio and enhancing the operating efficiency of the
Group.

In respect of financial performance during the Year Under Review,
the Group’s overall turnover increased from approximately
HK$1,362,916,000 in the previous year to approximately
HK$1,461,856,000 in the Year Under Review, representing a
7.3% increase. Contribution to gross profit for the Year Under
Review was approximately HK$126,242,000, with a decrease of
approximately HK$46,924,000 as compared with approximately
HK$173,166,000 for the same period last year. The decrease
in gross profit is mainly due to a lower margin in the product
distribution business. However, a fair value gain of approximately
HK$86,400,000 from securities investment was recorded for the
Year Under Review, and the profit attributable to the owners of
the Company recorded a significant increase from approximately
HK$3,221,000 in the same period last year to approximately
HK$37,527,000 in the current year. During the Year Under Review,
the writing-off of certain receivables has resulted in a substantial
increase in general and administrative expenses. Excluding
the above non-recurring expenses, general and administrative
expenses for the year was approximately HK$80,254,000,
representing 5.8% or HK$4,969,000 lower than approximately
HK$85,223,000 for the same period last year. Such decrease in
expenses is the result of the Group’s effort in controlling operating
costs.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE#HE

For the past 15 years, the professionalism we demonstrated, the
care we showed to our customers and the dedication we gave to
our service have been well recognised by our customers and the
industry and helped establish our position in the industry. While
not complacent with our accomplishments, we hope to leverage
on the combination of accumulative experience and innovative
technology, and introduce to the customers of Sau San Tong a
new experience of quality and efficiency. Apart from expanding its
business, Sau San Tong, as a responsible corporate citizen, also
proactively demonstrates its care for the community, supports
various welfare activities and encourages its employees to
participate in various voluntary services, with an objective to build
a harmonious society, help improve the lives of the young and the
senior communities and create a better future for the society. For
a number of consecutive years, Sau San Tong has been awarded
the “Caring Company” logo, which exemplifies our continuous care
and support to the society.

It is expected that Hong Kong, China and the global economic
environment will continue to fluctuate in 2015. Consumption and
investment will remain sluggish. However, with the “Internet +”
campaign proposed by Premier Li Kegiang during the standing
committee meeting of the State Council on 24 June 2015, it is
expected that the campaign will bring new energy and momentum
to economic growth. To prepare for the new mode of economy,
we have already started our deployment of sales channels through
online sales platforms. The Group remains to be cautiously
optimistic towards the long term development of the economy.

Looking forward, the Group will not only continue to develop its
beauty and slimming business with all-out effort, but also put
additional resources into the new business segment of securities
investment as well as e-commerce platform, and will actively
explore other investment opportunities by inviting experienced
management professionals to join our team, so as to broaden the
knowledge base of the Group and diversify the Group’s business
to maximise the overall benefit for the Group and its shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, customers, staff and business
partners for their valuable contributions and strong support to the
Group in a year full of challenges. With our persistent dedication
and relentless efforts, | am confident that the business of the
Group will maintain a steady growth in the future and bring good
returns to all shareholders.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEst:m R o

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

In 2014, our core markets in Hong Kong and the People Republic
of China (the “PRC”) performed less than spectacular, where
economic performance was below expectations albeit a modest
but steady growth pace, dampening both private consumption
and traveler expenditures. Increasing cost of sales including
rentals further aggravated the operating landscape. Stepping into
2015, with a weak start to the year and the US interest rates
on the cards, outlook for the local economy continued to be
fogged as the US Federal Reserve again and again left the door
open for delaying the timing and speed of the expected raise of
policy rates, which might spark further bouts of volatility in the
economies globally.

2 T I i 2 38
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEst:m R o

Heedless ofthe unfavorable operating conditions in which it
operates, the Group recorded a satisfactory performance in
the year ended 31 March 2015 (the “Year Under Review”). A
turnover amounting to approximately HK$1,461,856,000 was
recorded, representing an increase of 7.3% from approximately
HK$1,362,916,000 of the previous year. The main driver for the
increase was the continued remarkable growth in the distribution
sales of our Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd. (“Dong
Fang”). Turnover from Dong Fang increased by 12.6% to
approximately HK$1,398,485,000 during the Year Under Review
(2014: approximately HK$1,241,842,000). The management
is confident that the revenues generated from the distribution
business will continue to grow and generate stable and sizeable
revenue to the Group, as an increasing disposable income for vast
swathes of the Chinese population supported the consumption
on more high-end products. With a tilt towards the distribution
business in face of the current unfavourable environment for the
segment, our beauty, slimming and spa centres in Hong Kong and
in the PRC delivered a less amiable performance during the Year
Under Review. Turnover generated from all our beauty, slimming
and spa centres amounted to approximately HK$42,977,000
(2014: approximately HK$89,509,000), whereas the franchise
cooperation business made a contribution of approximately
HK$19,569,000 to the turnover of the Group (2014: approximately
HK$30,195,000).

Profit for the year amounted to approximately HK$37,994,000
for the Year Under Review (2014: approximately HK$7,645,000).
Profit attributable to owners of the Company showed a remarkable
increase from approximately HK$3,221,000 of the previous year
to approximately HK$37,527,000 during the Year Under Review.
The increases were mainly attributable to our new securities
investments business, which brought along net unrealised gains on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$86,400,000 for the Year Under Review (2014: nil).

Beauty, Slimming and Spa Centres

The retail sector in Hong Kong showed meagre growth during the
Year Under Review amidst unstable internal and external economic
environments and our beauty, slimming and spa business in Hong
Kong was unavoidably affected. Nevertheless the management
remains confident of the prospects of the segment given our

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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excellent service management that enables greater quality
assurance. The provision of beauty and slimming services by
our beauty, slimming and spa centres is targeted at the female
population aged 20 to 59 in Hong Kong,
which was shown to be continually on the
increase and has reached 2,519,200 at the
end of 2014 (provisional figure), accounting
for 34.7% of the total population according
to the statistics of the Census and Statistics
Department. We believe there are greater

potential to be unleashed from this business
despite the turmoil in face.

Our provision of comprehensive high-quality beauty and slimming
service in Hong Kong has earned the long-term favour of
customers. The combination of procedure sophistication with
effective customer-oriented marketing measures such as special
trial packages has enabled the provision of competitive products
and services that meet the demand and consumption pattern of
its target customers. Building on the above strengths, we believe
the business will soon become a significant growth driver and
made promising contribution to the Group again.

In the pursuit of excellence for its customers and to strengthen its
leading market position in the beauty and slimming industry, the
Group has introduced a number of innovative and sophisticated
beauty, slimming and anti-ageing treatments and machineries
during the Year Under Review. One of the highlights introduced
during the year was the “Thermalift”. It is a technology that
was developed to help the signs of ageing skin without surgery.

@ )
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This procedure is non-invasive and there is no “downtime”
or recuperation required. The non-surgical facelift / browlift
technology uses the most advanced dual mode pulsed light and
radio-frequency energy source to produce a desired cosmetic or
therapeutic effect without damaging skin. Thermalift can safely
treat wrinkles around the eyes, forehead, lower face and neck.

This technology is complemented by our introduction of the
“Collagen Tri-peptide Refining Treatments” which represent a
highly potent series of products used to smooth out wrinkles
and increase firmness through boosting collagen synthesis and
strengthening the skin matrix. This powerful blend contains nano-
sized active ingredients that readily penetrate into the dermis
layer of the skin for long-lasting smoothing, firming, clarifying and
hydrating in all skin types. The results are particularly remarkable
when the products are applied with the ThermalLift machine.

Our beauty and slimming business is supported by a strong
network in the PRC. On the whole, the beauty and slimming
industry is at the dawn of full development, given the ever
increasing consumption power of people especially in the second
and third tier cities, as well as rising aspiration for personal
appearance and well-being among the Chinese consumers. The
rise of the new affluent class and consumers’ uplifting demand
in China are seen as the main drivers behind the increasing
consumption of high quality beauty and slimming products and
services. Sophistication also marked the direction of development,
with a multifarious range of products and services on the
China market including beauty, body
sculpting, cosmetics, image design,

slimming and health management etc. /-._' \|I
To capture the opportunities arising
from the trend of market sophistication, ) '

we keep on focus on high-end products
and services with more rosy prospects,
so as to more fully leverage on the
strengths of our brand name, Sau San
Tong, that enjoys wide recognition,
board-based clientele and strong

reputation on the market. Over the G‘ t
years, we have successfully built our
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brand name in the PRC through strategically locating our beauty
and slimming centres in prime locations to promote customer

access, lavishing on the design and layout of our centres to create
an upscale image, and heavily investing in the most advanced
technologies and the training of professional beauty technicians.
Our beauty and slimming centre in Sinan Mansion, Shanghai and
our luxury beauty and slimming clubhouse in Shanghai Bund
area both opened in 2013 have added impressive dynamics to
our business in the PRC. These two centres are designed to
indulge our customers with impeccable treatments and services
provided by our stringently trained beauticians using our state-of-
art equipment in a fantastic environment. In view of the anticipated
strong demand for beauty, slimming and anti-ageing services and
products in China where a larger portion of the population moves
up the economic ladder, our established presence and reputation
in the PRC market will definitely form valuable assets for our
efforts to go seize a bigger piece of the high-end market with the
view to establish a more sustainable growth and return.

Distribution Business in the PRC

Product distribution in the PRC is another core business of
the Group alongside with the provision of slimming and beauty
services. Dong Fang is the largest distributor of P&G products in
East China Area, with a colossal presence in Jiangsu, Zhejiang and
Shanghai. Its provision of high-quality products and services in
the distribution of an extensive range of P&G products under the
brand names of SKIl, Olay, Pantene, Head & Shoulders, Oral-B,
Gillette Men, Vidal Sassoon and a number of other brands in the
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East and West China along the years has helped to establish a
solid reputation in the industry. Other household-known names in
the portfolio of Dong Fang included Crest, Clairol, and Rejoice.

Health, Beauty and Related Products

The Group understands that a strong portfolio consisted of
forerunning beauty and slimming products and services supported
by the most advanced technologies is one of the fundamentals
to our efforts to consolidate our leading market position and to
enable our strategic move to the high-end market. During the year,
a number of innovative products have been launched, including
the Swiss-developed “PhytoCellTec™ Argan Stem Cell Dermal
Anti Treatment”. Being the first skincare in the world proven to
be effective in protecting and invigorating the stem cells in the
dermis layer of the skin, this product series contains multiple
stem cell ingredients to rejuvenate the skin, leaving it with less
wrinkles, increased firmness and elasticity. Another star product
for the year was the “Haberlea Rhodopensis Skincare Series” that
contains Haberlea Rhodopensis, or Resurrection Flower, which
is known to survive up to several months of extreme hydration
and return to life when proper moisture conditions are restored.
Apart from restoring vital moisture to dry skin, this comprehensive
skincare Series remarkably corrects the appearance of fine lines
and wrinkles, helping to unveil a firmer, denser, sleeker & younger
looking complexion.

Moving ahead, we will continue to source and develop new
products and treatments supported by cutting-edge technologies
and made with safe ingredients in order to cater to the needs of
our customers. It is anticipated that the product sales segment will
remain one major driver to steam the Group’s development in the
years to come.

Franchise Co-operation Business in the PRC

The Group started venturing into the PRC market in 2004 upon
seeing the immense potential of this new market. To succeed,
we knew that we would need to establish our foothold in the
industry and gain a considerable share of the market ahead of our
counterparts, or in other words, in a relatively short period of time.
The franchise co-operation model was considered a most suitable
means to our ends, and it has enabled the Group to swiftly build
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an extensive network of franchise co-operate shops, capture a
sizeable market size and establish a strong brand presence in
the PRC upon its initial entry into the China market and over the
years. In the future, we will continue to leverage on this successful
business model and further expand our network of franchise co-
operate beauty and slimming shops with the objective of further
consolidating our brand presence and market position.

18 new franchise co-operate beauty and slimming shops
have been added to our extensive network during the Year
Under Review. As at 31 March 2015, more than 160 franchise
cooperation contracts have been signed.

BeautyU Online Booking Platform

Determined to tap into the virgin market of internet selling in the
beauty and slimming industry in PRC, we have launched BeautyU
(www.beautyu.com), the first online beauty and slimming service
booking platform in PRC in October 2012. This online shopping
website was designed to free our customers from the annoyance
of traditional exhausting hard-selling and prepayment practice, and
was warmly welcomed by retail customers who wanted to make
bookings online in accordance with their own needs. This platform
of internet selling continued to perform well over the past years
in terms of attracting retail customers, as well as soliciting beauty
and slimming service providers to join. We believe the website will
continue to be a valuable asset to the Group.
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Securities Investments Business

In March 2015, the Board announced the intention of the Group
to commence a new business segment of investment in securities,
which might include long-term and short-term investments in
listed securities in Hong Kong and other recognised securities
markets in the overseas as well as wealth management products
purchased from banks and other financial institutions, with a view
to enhancing the value of the shares of the Company and will
therefore be in the interest of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The Board is of the view that the securities
investments business will diversify the income stream of the Group
and broaden its revenue base. It is expected that the securities
investments business may also improve the capital usage
efficiency of the Company and generate additional investment
returns on the idle funds of the Company.

Outlook

The Group’s core beauty and slimming business has remained in a
difficult operating environment in the past year as the Hong Kong
economic growth recorded meagre growth at a rate lower than
the average rate of the past decade for the third consecutive year.
Consumer demand was suppressed by austerity measures posed
by the Central Government and macro-economic uncertainties,
but with the Central Government’s commitment to restructure
the economy from a growth spearheaded by the infrastructure
and investment industries to one driven by domestic demand
and services sector, the PRC economy is anticipated to embark
on a more sustainable growth path in 2015. Globally, economic
activities have shown clearer indications of a more upbeat trend.
Moving forward, the management remains optimistic about the
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Group’s prespects in the principal markets of Hong Kong and
the PRC and will continue to strive for stable growth through
cost control efforts and stringent quality assurance measures for
its services and products. The Group is also actively training its
teams of talents to maintain a consistent service level across its
beauty, slimming and spa centres in different region.

Our securities investments business recently established has
contributed outstanding results for the year, opening an additional
source of investment returns on the idle funds of the Company.
While the Group remains principally focused on the beauty and
slimming business, the new segment is a proven success to
diversify the income stream, broaden the revenue base and
optimise the capital usage efficiency. Our portfolio will comprise
meticulously selected investments in listed securities in Hong Kong
and other recognised securities markets in the overseas, as well
as wealth management products purchased from banks and other
financial institutions.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As a leader in the beauty and slimming industry, the Group
intends to lead the way in enhancing the safety level of the
sector. We have always attached great importance to the safety
of our services and products and exercises stringent quality
control on its products. The machines and materials used in our
treatment services have passed vigorous safety tests and attained
international safety standards.

Awards

Widely recognised and highly praised for its outstanding products
and services, the Group was proud to receive “My Favorite
Wellness Treatment 2015 — Beauty & Slimming Centre Category”
by Jessica Magazine” and is honoured to be the “Caring
Company” for seven consecutive years.

Charity

Devoted to pursue the perfection of physical beauty, we equally
believe in the beauty of the heart and spare ourselves no effort to
support charity initiatives. Regular charity donations and certain
volunteer initiatives are performed during the year.
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Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31 March 2015 were approximately
HK$182,953,000 compared to approximately HK$99,647,000 as
at 31 March 2014. Gearing ratio of the Group was 8.2% (2014:
22.7%), based on total of bank borrowings of approximately
HK$31,734,000 (2014: approximately HK$40,291,000) and the net
assets of approximately HK$385,295,000 (2014: approximately
HK$177,760,000). As at 31 March 2015, liability of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$210,510,000 (2014: approximately
HK$232,854,000), including account payables and other
payables of approximately HK$122,073,000 (2014: approximately
HK$99,439,000) arising mainly from the daily operations of
our subsidiary, Dong Fang, deferred income of approximately
HK$11,708,000 (2014: approximately HK$17,671,000), and bank
borrowings of approximately HK$31,734,000 (2014: approximately
HK$40,291,000) arising mainly from the trading activities of Dong
Fang. The liability is intended to be financed by internal resources
of the Group. The liquidity ratio of the Group represented by a
ratio of current assets over current liabilities was 3.32:1 (2014:
2.27:1), reflecting the adequacy of financial resources.

Pursuant to a rights issue made by the Company on 26
September 2014, the Company issued 893,857,500 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of HK$0.10 per
ordinary share on the basis of three new shares for every existing
share held (the “Rights Issue”), resulting in net proceeds of
approximately HK$86,017,000. Details of the Rights Issue are set
out in the Company’s prospectus dated 3 September 2014.

On 7 January 2015, the Company issued 59,560,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each pursuant to a placing under general
mandate at a price of HK$0.143 per share. The net proceeds
of approximately HK$8,389,000 will be utilised for funding the
potential acquisitions to be identified by the Company.

On 12 March 2015, the Company issued 357,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each pursuant to a placing under specific
mandate at a price of HK$0.143 per share. The net proceeds
of approximately HK$50,281,000 will be utilised for funding the
potential acquisitions to be identified by the Company.
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Convertible’Notes

Parsuant to the subscription agreement entered into between the
Company and Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (“Dr. Cheung”) and
an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 6 December 2013, the Company issued a convertible
note in the principal amount of HK$20,000,000 to Dr. Cheung
(“Subscription Convertible Note”) on 20 December 2013. The
Subscription Convertible Note is with 2% interest rate per annum
and is due in 3 years from the date of issue and convertible into
ordinary shares at an adjusted conversion price of HK$0.137 per
conversion share, subject to adjustments. Up to the date of this
announcement, the Subscription Convertible Note has not yet
been converted.

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between the
Company and the placing agent and an ordinary resolution passed
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 6 December 2013,
the placing of placing convertible notes in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 (“Placing Convertible Notes”) were
placed by the Placing Agent and issued to not fewer than six
placees who are independent third parties on 20 December 2013.
The Placing Convertible Notes are with 4% interest rate per annum
and is due in 3 years from the date of issue and convertible into
ordinary shares at an adjusted conversion price of HK$0.141 per
conversion share. The Placing Convertible Notes were converted
into ordinary shares in November 2014. Accordingly, a total of
212,765,954 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued on
conversion.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group evaluates the financial condition of its
customers regularly to mitigate the credit risk. The average
outstanding days of the Group’s accounts receivable was
maintained at below 90 days. To manage the liquidity risk, the
Group closely monitors its liquidity position to ensure the liquidity
structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments and
to ensure the fulfillment of its funding requirements. The Group
has no investments in derivatives, bonds or structured financial
products.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the assets, liabilities, revenue and payments of the Group
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi, the
Group considers that there was no significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

Net Assets

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s net assets amounted to
approximately HK$385,295,000 compared to approximately
HK$177,760,000 as at 31 March 2014. There are no charges on
the Group’s assets as at 31 March 2015 and 2014.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group and the Company had
no material contingent liabilities.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had 498 employees (2014:
527). During the year, the Group’s total staff costs amounted
to approximately HK$78,220,000 (2014: approximately
HK$81,439,000).

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of
the performance and experience of individual employee and are in
line with practices of local markets in which the Group operates.
In addition to salary, the Group also offers to its employees other
fringe benefits including share option, provident fund and medical
benefits.
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Share Option Scheme

The Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the
Company, under the terms and conditions stipulated therein, as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group. As at
31 March 2015 there is an aggregate of 34,486,666 outstanding
options to subscribe for 34,486,666 shares of the Company
pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 4 November
2003.

Future Plan

In view of the anticipated growing demand for beauty and
slimming products and services in Hong Kong and the PRC, the
Group will continue to introduce new treatments and products
to enrich our portfolio of services and products, but in a prudent
approach for our business given the uncertain macroeconomic
environment.

With the e-tail market in China gaining rapidly in size, the Group
takes e-commerce as an inevitable path to success. We believe
our website BeautyU online platform represents an innovative
business model that can consolidate our position in the industry,
serving three purposes at once: 1. improving brand visibility of our
brand name Sau San Tong on the internet at relatively low cost;
2. provide a highly accessible platform to our potential partners of
beauty and slimming service providers to promote entrepreneurial
opportunities; and 3. enhance the experience of making purchases
and bookings for our retail customers. With this unique tripartite
e-commerce engine in place, we expect to enjoy a big leap in our
performance as the economy turns around and other negative
factors disperse.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE EER S ESIEAEER

Directors

Executive Directors

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley (“Dr. Cheung”), aged 40, is
the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer and an
Executive Director of the Company. She is also the chairman
of the Company’s nomination committee. Dr. Cheung founded
the Group in 2000, and over the years, by virtue of her over 16
years’ expertise in beauty and slimming industry and profound
understanding and unique vision on the market, she can fully
capitalize on the trends and changes in the market and leading
the Group successfully developed into a famous and reputable
brand in Greater China. Dr. Cheung holds an honorary doctorate
degree from Armstrong University, U.S.A. and an Executive Master
degree of Business Administration from Peking University. Dr.
Cheung is responsible for the overall stewardship of the Group
which includes directions and formulating strategies. With her
management style and innovative promotional strategies, she
achieved various accomplishments and leading the Group to a
new height. She also holds directorships in various subsidiaries of
the Company. Dr. Cheung is the younger sister of Mr. Cheung Ka
Heng, Frankie, an Executive Director of the Company.

Dr. Cheung is an Honorary President of the Federation of Beauty
Industry (H.K.) and she has been appointed as a member of the
Beauty Industry Training Advisory Committee of Education Bureau
— Qualifications Framework in 2006. In the past, Dr. Cheung was
awarded as one of the “100 Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs
in China” by the “Women Entrepreneurs’ Association of China”.
She is also one of the few Hong Kong awardees and one of the
youngest awarded entrepreneurs. Subsequently, Dr. Cheung has
been awarded as one of the “World Outstanding Chinese”.

In respect of social charity, Dr. Cheung is an Honorary Consultant
of The Against Elderly Abuse of Hong Kong. Dr. Cheung has
founded the Shirley Cheung Charity Foundation, which is granted
as an approved charitable organization. As a Chairman of the
Foundation, she leads the team to serve and feedback to the
community in every minute and every moment.
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Mr. CHEUNG Ka Heng, Frankie (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 42, is an
Executive Director. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the business
development and administration of the Group. He is also a
member of the Company’s nomination committee and also holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung
is an Honorary General Committee Member of China Enterprise
Reputation and Credibility Association (Overseas). Mr. Cheung
holds a master degree in business administration from Americus
University of the United States and in 2014, he completed
the “Global Executive Programme” in Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University.

Prior to joining the Group in June 2002, Mr. Cheung was the
director of Vicorp Credit Services Limited, a company which
provides credit information, commencing from September 1999.
He has accumulated over 10 years experience in corporate finance
and lending industry. Mr. Cheung was previously an executive
director of Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the main board of the Exchange. Mr. Cheung is the elder brother
of Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, the Chairman of the Board, the
Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. MUI Wai Sum (“Mr. Mui”), aged 27, is an Executive Director
and joined the Group in December 2014. He is also a member of
the Company’s nomination committee. He also holds directorships
in various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Mui is a Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds an Honour Degree in General Finance from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Mui had worked for an
international accounting firm. He has over 3 years of experience
in corporate finance and corporate restructuring. Mr. Mui is an
executive director of Sunrise (China) Technology Group Limited
(stock code: 8226), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Exchange.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin (“Mr. Hong”), aged 65, is an
Independent Non-executive Director and joined the Group in
June 2002. He is responsible for giving advices to the board
of Directors and shareholders of the Company. He is also the
chairman of the Company’s audit committee, a member of the
Company’s remuneration committee and nomination committee.
Mr. Hong is a practicing solicitor and a notary public in Hong
Kong. He has been practicing as a solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong for over 36 years and is the senior partner of Messrs
Lau, Chan & Ko, Solicitors. He holds a bachelor degree in science
from University of New South Wales. Mr. Hong is an independent
non-executive director of Modern Beauty Salon Holdings Limited
(stock code: 919), a company listed on the main board of the
Exchange.

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing (“Mr. Li”), aged 56, is an Independent Non-
executive Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is
also the chairman of the Company’s remuneration committee,
a member of the Company’s audit committee and nomination
committee. Mr. Li is the Vice Chairman of the Federation of Motion
Film Producers of Hong Kong Limited since 1998. Mr. Li is the
founder and chairman of Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited
(stock code: 391), a company listed on the main board of the
Exchange.

Ms. HUI Yat Lam (“Ms. Hui”), aged 41, is an Independent Non-
executive Director and joined the Group in March 2008. She is
also a member of the Company’s audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee. Ms. Hui is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation of
Institute of Hong Kong. Ms. Hui has over 20 years of experience
in professional auditing, accounting and financial management
related experience from international accounting firm and listed

group.
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Cavaliere Ms. CHIU Kam Hing Kathy, JP (“Ms. Chiu”), aged
66, joined the Group in October 2013 as an Independent Non-
Executive Director, and also as a member of the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. Ms. Chiu has over 29 years of banking experience
in Canada and the Asia Pacific Region. She was Senior Vice
President at the Republic National Bank of New York for almost
thirteen years and was responsible for the management and
investment of third party client’s funds. Ms. Chiu is an associate
and a fellow of the Institute of Canadian Bankers. Ms. Chiu
was appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong
Government in 1992 and as Cavaliere by the lItalian Government
in 1999 and she is Montblanc Outstanding Business Lady of
the year 2002 in Hong Kong. Ms. Chiu is the chairman of Prime
Investments Group Limited and also an independent non-executive
director of National Agricultural Holdings Limited (stock code:
1236), a company listed on the main board of the Exchange.
Ms. Chiu is licensed to carry out asset management business
under Type 9 regulated activity under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong). Ms. Chiu was
previously an independent non-executive director of Asia Coal
Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Exchange.

Senior Management

Mr. TSE Ching Leung, aged 42, is the Financial Controller,
Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr.
Tse is responsible for overseeing the accounting and financial
management and company secretarial functions of the Group. He
is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Tse joined the Group in February 2008 and has
accumulated over 20 years of accounting and auditing experience.
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Introduction

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group. It believes in good corporate governance
practices that strengthen investors’ confidence, facilitate the
development of the Group, and increase transparency in the
operation of the Group, ultimately striving for the long-term interest
of the Group and enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance
practices and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2015, except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.2.1

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Currently, the Company does
not have a separate Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (“Dr. Cheung”), the founder of the
Group, holds both positions. The Board believes that Dr. Cheung
can guide discussions and brief the Board in a timely manner on
pertinent issues given her solid experience and strong connection
in the beauty sector, and that vesting the roles of both Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer in her provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for more effective and
efficient planning and execution of long-term business strategies.

Code provision A.2.7

Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the chairman of the board
of directors should at least annually hold meetings with the
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) without the executive directors’ presence. As Dr.
Cheung, the Chairman of the Board, is also an Executive Director,
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the Company has deviated from this code provision as it is not
applicable. Besides, the Chairman of the Board considered that it
was unnecessary as it would be more transparent and efficient to
let the Independent Non-executive Directors express their views
to all Executive Directors in the meetings of the Board. Besides,
the Chairman of the Board always welcomes all Independent Non-
executive Directors to communicate with her directly via email or
phone to discuss any matters of the Company from time to time.

Code provision A.6.7

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should attend general meetings of the Company and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, Ms. Hui Yat Lam and
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, being the Independent Non-executive
Directors, due to other unexpected important engagements, were
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 24 September 2014, and the extraordinary general meetings
held on 21 August 2014 and 17 February 2015 respectively.

Code provision C.1.2

Code provision C.1.2 stipulates that the management shall provide
all members of the board with monthly updates. Management
considers that quarterly updates and periodic instant updates
when developments arising out of the ordinary business instead
of monthly updates are sufficient for the Board to discharge its
duties. Besides, during the Year Under Review, the Executive
Directors have provided, and will continue to provide, to all
Independent Non-executive Directors updates on any material
changes to the position and prospects of the Company, which
are considered to be sufficient to provide general updates of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to the Board and
allow them to give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the same to serve the purpose required by the code provision
C.1.2.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.

Board of Directors
Composition

As at 31 March 2015, the Board comprised of seven Directors,
including three Executive Directors and four Independent
Non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board during the
year is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

Mr. Mui Wai Sum (appointed on 12 December 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing

Ms. Hui Yat Lam

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on
pages 25 to 28.
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Functions, Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Company, undertaking the responsibility to lead and control
and to promote the success of the Company through providing
direction and supervision. All Directors are bound by their duties
to make objective decisions in the interests of the Company.
The Board is responsible for the major affairs of the Company,
including the approval and supervision of all major policies, overall
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (particularly transactions involving conflict of interest),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other material
financial and operating matters. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of annual, interim and quarterly accounts for approval
by the Board before publication, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
internal control systems and risk management procedures, and
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and
regulations.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size
and composition to provide checks and balances that safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.
All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s affairs.

Independence

The Company has four Independent Non-executive Directors, at
least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule
5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has received from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors a confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Each Independent Non-executive Director is required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may
affect his/her independence.
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Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie, an Executive Director, is the elder
brother of Dr. Cheung, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
an Executive Director of the Company. Save as disclosed above,
there is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among the members of the
Board.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic
means of communication at least four times a year to, among
other matters, review past financial and operating performance
and discuss the Group’s direction and strategy. Appropriate
notices of regular Board meetings are given to all Directors, who
are all given an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for discussion. Senior management from time to time
provides to the Directors information on activities and development
of the business of the Group. The Company Secretary takes
detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps records of matters
discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings. Both draft
and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comments and records, and such minutes are open for inspection
with reasonable advance notice.

The Directors can seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
According to the current Board’s practices, should a potential
conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder or Director
of the Company arise, the matter is discussed in a Board meeting,
as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution. Independent
Non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest should be
present at meetings dealing with conflict issues. When the Board
considers any proposal or transaction in which a Director has a
conflict of interest, the Director declares his interest and abstains
from voting.
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Four meetings of the Board were held during the year. The
attendance of each Director at the meetings of the Board is set
out below:

FR EFGHETHREH SEFHEE
EgeRZBEREIIMT

Number of meetings

attended/held  Attendance rate
Name of Directors EEHS HEBITERRE HER
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman) REMBE+(E/E) 4/4 100%
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie REELE 4/4 100%
Mr. Mui Wai Sum (appointed on BEREER_ZT—MF 2/2 100%

12 December 2014) TZA+TZREZE)

Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin BEERLE 2/4 50%
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing ek 2/4 50%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam R 4/4 100%
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy Wit 3/4 75%
Appointment and Re-election of Directors ZAERERES

The Company uses a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors. The proposed
appointments will be considered and if thought fit, approved by
the Board after due deliberation and upon recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

All Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
are appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Continuing Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package covering policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors shall
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.
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The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company has been encouraging the Directors and officers to
participate in a wide range of professional development courses
and seminars relating to the GEM Listing Rules, applicable
regulatory requirements and corporate governance practices
organised by professional bodies and/or independent auditors to
further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training or seminars and reading relevant materials to
refresh their knowledge and skills.

Insurance

The Company arranges and reviews annually appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against its Directors and officers.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this report, Dr. Cheung, assumes both positions
as the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
This deviates from code provision A.2.1, which stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

The Board believes that Dr. Cheung, the founder of the Group,
can guide discussions and brief the Board in a timely manner on
pertinent issues given her solid experience and strong connection
in the beauty sector, and that vesting the roles of both Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer in her provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for more effective and
efficient planning and execution of long-term business strategies.

The Board’s decisions are implemented under the leadership
of the Chairman with the involvement and support of the
management of the Group. The Board believes that the balance
of authority and division of responsibility are adequately ensured
by the operations of the Board and management which comprise
experienced and high calibre individuals.
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Board Gommittees

The Board has maintained three Board Committees (the “Board
Committee”), namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, throughout the year to
oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each of these
Committees has specific written terms of reference, which deal
clearly with their authorities and duties.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established on 4 November 2003, and the Company had adopted
a revised terms of reference as of 29 March 2012 in accordance
with Rule 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Exchange and the
Company.

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing,
Ms. Hui Yat Lam and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy. The Committee
is chaired by Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin. No member of the Audit
Committee is a member of the former or existing auditor of the
Company.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: (a) to independent review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control systems;
(b) to ensure good communications among Directors and the
Company’s auditor; (c) to recommend the appointment of external
auditor on an annual basis and approval of the audit fees; (d) to
assist the Board in oversight of the independence, qualifications,
performance and compensation of the independent accountant;
(e) to review quarterly, interim and annual results announcements
as well as the financial statements prior to their approval by
the Board; and (f) to provide advice on audit report, accounting
policies and comments to all Directors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. Senior representatives of
the external auditor, Executive Directors and senior management
are invited to attend the meetings, if required.
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During the year, the Audit Committee has approved the nature and
scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements of the Group, and was satisfied
that the accounting policies and standards of the Group complied
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and
that the adequate disclosures have been made.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year.
The attendance of each member at the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out below:

AR

FA - BRZEGCHEEEERIHLE RS
B YEHAKRBEZFE FHRFEMBER

= HEZWK%Z@%BZ%&E@E'JE?%%%E
AEtER > WEEHRDORKE -
FR - BERZEGRABTHIREE - FKE D
FEZZEgEZZBREAIIMT

Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of members REER HE " BITEERH HE=R
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (Chairman) REREE(EE) 2/4 50%
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing 2B 5 A 2/4 50%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam R T 4/4 100%
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy iicherag AL s 3/4 75%
Remuneration Committee SESES

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 23 June 2006, and the Company
had adopted a revised terms of reference as of 29 March 2012
in accordance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the requirements set out under Code Provision. The terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Exchange and the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, Mr. Hong Po Kui,
Martin, Ms. Hui Yat Lam and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy. The
Committee is chaired by Mr. Li Kuo Hsing.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but
are not limited to, the following: (a) to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policies and structure for all
(b) to make

recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages

Directors’ and senior management remuneration;

of individual Executive Directors and senior management; and (c)
to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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During the.year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company.

Two meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Remuneration Committee is set out below:

TR FHRESCRIAARANTEFTRS
REEE 2 HBTE

FR FHEZESHBTRREHE - SKEH
FHHEZEeeR 2 BREIIMT

Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of members REZB HE/BITEBERY HE=R
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (Chairman) RS LA (EE) 2/2 100%
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin RE RS E 2/2 100%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam R 2/2 100%
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy HEEZzt 2/2 100%
Nomination Committee RELZEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 29 March 2012, and the
Company had adopted a terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provision A.5. The terms of reference are available on
the websites of the Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises, three Executive Directors,
namely Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, Mr. Cheung Ka Heng,
Frankie and Mr. Mui Wai Sum and four Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, Ms.
Hui Yat Lam and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy. The Committee is
chaired by Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, and make recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed changes; and (b) to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
Board composition, the appointment and re-appointment of
Directors and also succession planning for the Board, the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. During
the year, the Nomination Committee recommended Mr. Mui Wai
Sum to be appointed as an Executive Director of the Board.

Two meeting of the Nomination Committee were held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:

AR

FRNIBEEZEQCRNESECHAK  EF
PEEREFET URESBS AQRERFE
RITHRBE 2 ETTE - ZES UM ERE -
BERAKEZTAESY - RAFER - 2%
ZEENEZeREEFBERLERIITE
$o

FR REZESHBITMAEZ - SKED
FREZESEZ2BEARINAT :

Number of meetings

attended/held  Attendance rate
Name of members REHE HE T BITEERE HE R
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman) ?Eifﬂﬁﬁj:(i‘fﬁ) 2/2 100%
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie REELE 2/2 100%
Mr. Mui Wai Sum (appointed on WEREE(RZZ—MWF 1/1 100%

12 December 2014) +-—A+-—HEZMT)

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin RE T A 2/2 100%
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing ZTRHE I E 2/2 100%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam PR 2/2 100%
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy i herad i e 2/2 100%
Corporate Governance Functions T EE R
No corporate governance committee of the Company has been RARUEKNICHXERLZER  UHEEE

established and the Board as a whole is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties including: (a) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; (c)
to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and (e) to review
the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies

and practices on corporate governance.
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Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance have been complied with. The Directors believe that
they have complied all applicable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable. The Directors also ensure the timely publication
of the financial statements of the Group. As at 31 March 2015,
the Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties or
events which may have a significant impact on the Company’s
ability to operate as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis,
which contemplates continuity of normal business activities and
the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the ordinary
course of business.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditor for audit services amounted to HK$1,300,000 and
fee for non-audit related activities amounted to HK$225,000.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system to safeguard the Company’s assets and
shareholders’ interests. The internal control system is designed to
reduce, but not eliminate, risks of failure in operational systems.
The system helps to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Systems and
procedures are put in place to identify, manage and control the
risks of different businesses and activities. Risk control limits are
established according to the appropriate authorisation hierarchy.

The internal control system comprises a well-defined organizational
structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority
to ensure effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability
of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. The Board convened meeting periodically to discuss
financial, operational and risk management control. During the
year ended 31 March 2015, the Board has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
at its meetings and through reviews performed by the Audit
Committee and executive management, and considered that the
internal control system and procedures of the Group, including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programs and budget, are adequate and effective and have
complied with the provisions of the Code during the year.

Company Secretary

The primary duties of the Company Secretary include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to ensure the Board procedures
are followed and that the activities of the Board are carried out
efficiently and effectively; (b) to assists the Chairman to prepare
agendas and Board papers for meetings and disseminates such
documents to the Directors and Board Committees in a timely
manner; (c) to timely dissemination of announcements and
information relating to the Group to the market; and (d) to maintain
formal minutes of the Board meetings and other Board Committee
meetings.
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Mr. Tse Ching Leung (“Mr. Tse”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company. The biographical details of Mr. Tse
are set out under the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile.”

Mr. Tse has confirmed that he has undertaken no less than 15
hours of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

Shareholders’ Rights
Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)

In accordance with Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any one or more shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition.

Right to direct enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary by
addressing them to the principal place of business of Company in
Hong Kong at: 4/F., Sands Building, 17 Hankow Road, Tsim Sha
Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Right to put forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to
the operations, strategy and/or management of the Group.
Shareholders are request to follow Article 58 of the Company’s
Articles of Association for including a resolution at an EGM. The
requirement and procedures are set out in paragraph headed
“Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)”
above.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and
transparent communication with all shareholders. The Company
has provided clear and full performance information of the Group
to shareholders in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and
through various communication channels, including AGM and
EGM, quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. Additional information of the Group is also available
to shareholders on the Company’s website at http://www.
sausantong.com.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM for which not
less than 21 clear days’ notice is given. The Chairman and
Directors are available to answer questions on the Group’s
business at the meeting.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments
and suggestions are always welcomed.

Constitutional Documents

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.

Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of
applying and complying with the Corporate Governance Code of
the Exchange but also about promoting and developing an ethical
and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review and,
where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of
our experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views
and suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and improve
our transparency are also welcome.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Cayman lIslands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and
its shares have been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market (the
“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and particulars of the jointly controlled entities
and subsidiaries are set out in notes 14 and 33 to the financial
statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products, sale of other health and beauty
products and investment in securities. The slimming centres,
which are operated under the “Sau San Tong” brand name,
provide services such as whole and partial body slimming, weight
management, body treatment services and facial treatment
services to its customers.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015, and
the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date, are set out in the
financial statements on pages 56 to 160.

Transfer of Reserves

Profit attributable to owners of the Company of HK$37,527,000
(2014 profit of HK$3,221,000) has been transferred to reserves.
Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 60 to 61.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014 Nil).
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Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 4. The summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 11 to the financial statements on page
107.

Convertible notes

Details of the movements in convertible notes of the Group are set
out in note 22 to the financial statement on pages 120 to 121.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements on page
130 to 136.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and reserved) of the Cayman lIslands, share
premium and contributed surplus of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders. As at 31 March 2015, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$120,633,000 (2014:
HK$35,048,000).

Segment Information

The segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2015 is set out in note 10 to the financial statements on
pages 104 to 106.

Share Option Information

A summary of the share option scheme and details of the
movements in share options of the Company during the year are
set out in note 25 to the financial statements on pages 125 to
128.
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Connected Transaction

The “Other related party transactions” as disclosed in the note
31(b) to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2015 do not constitute a connected transaction or a
continuing connected transaction under the GEM Listing Rules.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
Mr. Mui Wai Sum (appointed on 12 December 2014)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing

Ms. Hui Yat Lam

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Ms. Hui Yat Lam and Mr.
Mui Wai Sum will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, Ms. Hui Yat Lam
and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy as at the date of this annual report
and therefore still considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are
set out on pages 25 to 28.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley and Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
each has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing 4 November 2003 and will
continue thereafter for successive term of one year unless and
until terminate by not less than six months’ notice in writing served
by either party to the other provided that such notice period shall
not expire at any time during the first 12 calendar months of the
term of the appointment.

Each of these Executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary
and a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount
of the bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any
financial year of the Company may not exceed 10% of the audited
consolidated net profit of the Group (after taxation and non-
controlling interests but before extraordinary and exceptional items
of the Group) in respect of the financial year.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for
a term expiring on 31 July 2014 with the term being renewed for
a further term of one year commencing from 1 August 2014. Save
for a total fee of approximately HK$180,000 for all of them for
the year ended 31 March 2015, the Independent Non-executive
Directors are not entitled to any other remuneration.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence
and the prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 June 2006,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of
29 March 2012 in accordance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision.
Details of the role and work performed by the committee are set
out in “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.
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Directors” Interests in Contracts

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisting during or at
the end of the financial year to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2015, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates in shares and underlying shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) which are required to be notified to the Company and
the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
including interests and/or short positions which they are deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which will
be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company:

EECE0ER

EEMERANRTREEMMERARARILM
RAFRFREARERFDAFEZETMEX
BHTERAREREEAER

EERFETHRAERRO 2ERE
15829}

RZZE—RAF=A=+—8 ARAIEEKE
BITBRABRESEZHMBATIRAAAGHE
BB (TR REFRBEGEN([F5 KBS
Bl 1 EXVER) Z Bt RAEEE IR ([ 1D 1)
BERSIAE + MBRIEES REEENE
XVESE 7 R ESHD WM E MG AND A MEE R A
(BIEREFSMBERN 2 BB - HER
BREERA ZERRSKR)  REES
MERERDIE 352158 FE R - s BRIFAIER
FHRBIE5.46 £ 5.67 IFHE AN T REE AT
EHWR

RARBIRD 2R

Number of shares

RO EE
Approximate
percentage of
interest in the
Company’s
issued share
capital
Corporate Personal P NN
Name of Directors interests interests Total ERITRA
EEgE ARER B AR 55 wmy ERzHYEIH
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 125,328,000 161,290,800 286,618,800 15.74%
ok EIME L (Note 1)
(K1at 1)
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie - 2,800,000 2,800,000 0.15%
REIELA
Note 1: BT

The 125,328,000 shares were held by Biochem Investments Limited
(“Biochem”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability. The entire issued share capital of Biochem is wholly owned by Dr.
Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company:
Share Option Scheme
The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from

share options granted to the Directors of the Company under the
Company’s share option scheme, details of which are as follows:

RAR TG 2158 -
iR 2T 8

AN RV RRAD 2 M 3R A RAR AR AR
HURTAATNEEZMBE - HFENT

Approximate

percentage
Aggregate interest in
long position  the Company’s
in underlying issued
shares of the share capital
Subscription Company N
price per share REAH BRITRA
Name of Director Date of grant Exercisable period SREH HER G+ EmzBa
Esps RTEH T8 REE HRZEH BAk
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie 2 March 2011 2 March 2011 — HK$0.283 4,666,666 0.26%
REELRE “F——%=AZH  1March2016 0.283/7T
“T-—%=ZHZHZE
—T-RE=A-H
Note: Bt -

The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director in a physically

settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates has any personal, family, corporate or other interests
or short positions in the Shares of the Company or its associated
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, are
required to be notified to the Company and the Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2015, so far was known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested in 5%
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or more ofsthe issued capital of the Company, or which were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or have notified to the Company were as
follows:

Long position in Shares:

A £ AR E S R
3BT E Y BRE R HRAe AR DS
mF -

NSV sy

Number of shareholding

BEREE
Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage
FERRK g1 8 B
Biochem Beneficial owner 125,328,000 6.88%
EnfAA
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley Beneficial owner 161,290,800 8.86%
ok BB L EnfEAA
Like Capital Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 124,200,000 6.82%
(formerly known as CNI Capital Limited) EmlAA
EEERBRAR (M)
(BIT7E CNI Capital Limited)
Ethnocentric Investment Limited Interest in a controlled 124,200,000 6.82%
(Notel) (B1z£ 1) corporation
SEHER 2 s
Capital VC Limited (Note 1) Interest in a controlled 124,200,000 6.82%
BRI BR AR (HaE 1) corporation
ZEEHER 2 s
China Mobile Games and Entertainments Beneficial owner 132,656,000 7.28%

Group Limited EmiEA A

Note 1:

Like Capital Limited is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability which is wholly and beneficially owned by Ethnocentric Investment
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and is wholly and beneficially owned by Capital VC Limited, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company and the chief executive of the
Group whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Position in Shares” above,
has registered an interest or short position in the share capital,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
has any interest in a business which compete or might compete
with the business of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued share as required under the GEM listing rules
throughout the Year Under Review and up to the date of this
report.

Corporate Governance
Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the

Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report section
set out on pages 29 to 43.
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Events_after the Reporting Period

(@ On 22 May 2015, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party
to acquire a property situated in Hong Kong for a cash
consideration of HK$45,576,000.

(b)  On 12 June 2015, Creative Time Investments Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an individual independent third
party (the “Vendor”) for the acquisition of the entired equity
interest in | Pro Skin Care Centre Limited (“iPro”) and all
debts owed by iPro to the Vendor for a cash consideration
of HK$18,000,000. iPro is a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability and is principally engaged in the
operation of a beauty centre for the provision of slimming
and beauty services in Hong Kong.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 98.61% (2014: 97.16%) of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 98.54% (2014: 93.56%). Sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 60.76% (2014: 46%) of the total
sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$1,560,000 (2014: HK$742,000).

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 4 November 2003,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as
of 29 March 2012 in accordance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Details of the role and work performed by the
committee are set out in “Corporate Governance Report” in the
annual report. The audit committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2015.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Auditor

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B #% & Eh¥R &

’::)

BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG | K it

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited

BEEERBRAT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 160, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2015, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014/15
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B # & Eh¥R &

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2015 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 June 2015

Tong Wai Hang
Practising certificate number P06231
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS #eEms &

For thewear endedh3T\March 2015 BHZ —T—RAF=A=+—RHItFE

(Expfessed in Horlg Kang'dollars) (AT 271)

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Net unrealised gains on financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Other revenue

Other net income

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Share of losses of joint ventures

Profit before taxation

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
— Basic

— Diluted

EE S

5 B

ER
BATEFABRRZ
CREEZARE
W FRR

HAb Wz

H A Y A F R

$HE RO A

— MR R AT 2
REmF

A& PR A
ElhaEhxEE
BRBL AT % F
PS5 <

F R F

BER

EN/NIEZ 2SN
FEIE R R o

BRER
— ER

— 8

The notes on pages 65 to 160 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2014/15

2015 2014

—E-—AHEF —EFE-EF

Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
k=3 FEx FET
3 1,461,856 1,362,916
(1,335,614) (1,189,750)

126,242 173,166

86,400 —

4 12,791 15,996
4 5,434 3,359
(80,620) (85,050)
(97,964) (85,223)

52,283 22,248
5(a) (4,424) (3,647)
(2,047) (3,669)

5 45,812 14,932
6 (7,818) (7,287)
37,994 7,645

37,527 3,221

467 4,424

37,994 7,645

HK cents HK cents

Bl JEA

(restated)

(&&E7)

9

3.54 0.55

2.93 0.55

FO5EF 160 B M ELREFBRE

—H5 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #@eEm R HM2mEkER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2 =L —AF - A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETT271)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year:

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss:

— Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements of foreign
operations, net of nil tax

— Reclassification adjustment for
the cumulative exchange gain on
translation of financial statements
of foreign operations transferred to
profit or loss upon deregistration of a
subsidiary, net of nil tax

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

financial statements.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014/15 | 2014/15 FERSE

FRER

FREAMZEKE
HigngesoBEBa AR ¢

— BMEBINNEB AR Z M ER
RIFELZERLZR
EIA . FHE

— RRBEHE L —HHE QR
REBRERD  MEBINE
B2 BB mRAES 2 25t
R Gy (=R
AR EEEFE

FREMEE KRGS

FREEKSAE

BER

ZAUNETEZ 2SN
FRIE R

A

— 85 -

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
37,994 7,645
884 1,657

(5) —

879 1,657
38,873 9,302
37,984 4,143
889 5,159
38,873 9,302

A

The notes on pages 65 to 160 form part of the consolidated EG S

LTI FRAMBRE 2

EEEZRERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At81"Wlarch 2015 ST AFE=A=+—H
(Expfessed in Horlg Kong'dollars) (AT 2%1)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Goodwill

Interests in joint ventures

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Amounts due from related parties

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Bank loans

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges
Amount due to a director

Amounts due to joint ventures
Amounts due to related parties
Deferred income

Current tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE
ER =Y g

FBEE
s

BV EAABSRIEREE

FEWE 5 7K IH

e IR &

ENFE - e R EAMEWGKIE

e A= A £ 5RIR
RekREFED

hRBAE

RITER
eI E S 500R

Hip e AR ERTE A
e —REEFHA

e & 2B EFIA

P REE A LR
EFEWA

e E BT IR

RBEEFH

BEEAERABRE

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2015 2014

—E-AfF —ZE—OF

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

11 29,581 32,626

12 4,908 6,722

13 320 320

14 — 2,047

34,809 41,715

15 18,712 26,272

16 95,400 —

17 139,351 154,880

17 115,796 78,715

18 8,784 9,385

182,953 99,647

560,996 368,899

19 31,734 40,291

20 51,758 42,364

20 70,315 57,075

21 39 730

14 1,854 1,896

18 = 1,511

11,708 17,671

23(a) 1,646 1,238

169,054 162,776

391,942 206,123

426,751 247,838
EGEZERERAR

2014/15 FEHE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #& B #& iR n =
At 31 March 2015 R —Z—RHE=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

2015 2014
—E-hHEF —E—mF
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Non-current liabilities EFREBERE
Convertible notes AR RS Bk 22 19,290 48,324
Other long-term liability HEfREABE 26 17,786 17,102
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEE F 23(b) 4,380 4,652
41,456 70,078
NET ASSETS EETFHE 385,295 177,760
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRR#HE 27
Share capital f& A 18,211 2,980
Reserves s 348,330 150,420
Total equity attributable to owners of ~ ANAF A AJE(LHES 1858
the Company 366,541 153,400
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 18,754 24,360
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 385,295 177,760

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 EEZgNR T -RFANASHAEREREE

June 2015 FzE -
Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley Mui Wai Sum
RE M MEER
Director Director
EFE EE

The notes on pages 65 to 160 form part of the consolidated E65EE160 B M I ESAMBEREY
financial statements. — =R o

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED @ #BE5EZRERLF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #rEeEZEE X
For thewear endedh3T\March 2015 BHZ —T—RAF=A=+—RHItFE
(Expfessed in Horlg Kang'dollars) (AT 271)

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAREAER

Share- The PRC

based Convertible  statutory

payment notes  surplus Acc- Non-
Share Share  Merger Exchange  reseve  reseve  resemve Other  umulated controling Total
captal  premum  resene  reserve Ry AR PEEE  resee  losses Tt interests  equity

B ROEE AHEE EXRE HREE REEE BUBE RRBE HER A% HIRER  oeE
Note  HKSOOD ~ HKS000  AKSO0  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKS000  AKSO00  HKSOO0  HKS000
wE  7ET TET TR TEr TET  TEr TET T TET TET TET TEr

At 1 April 2013 A-%-ZF
mA-A 2483 160,072 (3,687) 6,974 10,7382 - 4,463 48 (650621) 125514 28,767 149,281

Changes in equity ZE-MER

for 2014; PR
Proft forthe year Ehgil - - - - - - - Y R - Y /TR 1T

Other comprehensive £ 2ENE
income - - - 922 - - - - - 922 735 1,607

Total comprehensive  FRZERGAE
income for the year - - - 922 - - - - 3221 4143 5,159 9,302

Cancelltion and exply ~ EREZHRER

of share options - - - - (2,982) - - - 2,982 - - -
Issue of convertible EITARER

notes 2 - - - - - 1,925 - - - 1,925 - 1,925
Appropriation to the B EETRS

PRC statutory R

surplus reserve - - - - - - 2210 - 2.210) - - -
lssue of shares ik 27(c)fi) 497 21850 - - - - - - -0 -0
Share issue expenses  [RAEAER 27(c)fi) - (529) - - - - - - - (529) - (529)
Dividends paid tonon- ~~ fFF3ERRER L

controling interests & - - - - - - - - - - (4566)  (4,560)

e ) - w19 220 - 3B U6 55 28479

At 31 March 2014 RZE-mE
ZR=t-H 2080 181393 (3637 7896 770 195 6673 1§ (51620 153400 24360 177,760

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED | #5EZRERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #réEZEHR
For the year ended 31 March 20156 B#Z T —RAF=A=+—RHItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

Note

At 1 April 2014 RZE-RE
BA-R

Changes in equity -1y
for 2015: ERgE

Profit for the year ERER

Other comprehensive 2 ENE
income

Total comprehensive ~ ERZEREAE
income for the year

Cancglation of share ~~ EREFHRER

options
Appropriation to the BTEEE

PRC statutory EpfE

surplus reserve
Conversion of BETAREER

convertble notes LRk

into ordinary shares 2
Issue of shares il 27(c)i

Shareissue expenses  RAZAER 27(c)i
Dividends paid tonon- 2R
controling interests i

At 31 March 2015 R-E-1f
Zh=t-H

The notes on pages 65 to 160 form part of the consolidated E65EFE160 B M I ESSMEREY
financial statements. — =5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

For thewear ended\31\March 2015 BEZE=—T—AF=A=+—HIEFE

(Expfessed in Horlg Kang'dollars) (AT 271)

Operating activities

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

— Net unrealised gains on financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss

— Interest income

— Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

— Finance costs

— Amortisation of intangible assets

— Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

— Impairment losses on trade and
other receivables

— Write off of other receivables,
deposits paid and amount due
from a related party

— Share of losses of joint ventures

— Net foreign exchange loss

Operating (loss)/profit before
changes in working capital

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade
receivables

Increase in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Increase in amounts due from related
parties

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase in other payables and
accrued charges

Decrease in deferred income

(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to
joint ventures

(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to
related parties

FLOWS ZERERER

2015 2014
—E—RAE —m4F
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
ir=3 FET FET
BESTE
BR B A A 45,812 14,932
mMTﬂ@-
— BAFEFABZZEME
EZ A AN FRE
(86,400) —
— FIEWA 4 (348) (328)
— HEWE  KERBEZS
BFE 4 379 209
BhE RN 5(a) 4,424 3,647
- ﬂﬁ/ BEH 5(c) 1,814 1,664
— W ERRBEBITE
5(c) 9,385 8,278
— [BUE 55038 R B A R MR
TEH R B &5 18 5(c) 333 1,323
— HEHE b e B
BfEe MEK— %
BB A TR 5(c) 17,710 —
— EBEEEREEBE 2,047 3,669
— [EREIBFERE 341 785
EEESRHAZ
g (ER),BR (4,503) 34,179
TFERL,/(3Em) 7,560 (13,103)
FEUE SRR (38 0)
15,466 (31,409)
BAFEFFABTZEMEE
#hn (9,000) -
TERFIE -~ B REMER
FIBLE N (48,740) (9,263)
JIE U B85 A £ FRIEIE N
(5,720) (107)
FEHE SREE I, G ) 9,394 (10,563)
HMEMSRERETER
30 13,240 11,702
TR AR (5,963) (4,141)
ESE & ER
CR )/ira‘bu (42) 1,877
FEASBAE A T30
(R A,/ (1,511) 119
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED EGEZERERAR

Annual Report 2014/15
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #HRERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ =T —AF=A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

2015 2014
—Z—hfF T —OF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BtaF FET FAET
Cash used in operations ARREER RS (29,819) (20,709)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BT B ERTER (7,866) (7,436)
Interest received EFE 348 328
Net cash used in operating activities FAREEZB2HLFHE (87,337) (27,817)
Investing activities RETE
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WSEREREZE
plant and equipment SRIE 41 24
Payment for the purchase of property, BEEW%¥ - #eE KR E 2 R
plant and equipment (6,554) (13,001)
Net cash used in investing activities FARBREZBZHLFEHE (6,513) (12,977)
Financing activities RMEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans IR TTERZ TS IE 75,672 98,323
Proceeds from issue of convertible BT R ER IS RUA
notes, net of expenses MR - 29,400
Proceeds from issue of shares, net of  37TR% ) 2 Fr{S A
expenses HBFAY 144,687 21,818
(Repayment to)/advances from a (BE) RAESZEN
director (691) 16
Repayment of bank loans EBIRTER (84,500) (76,894)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ST IEERR R 2 AR B
interests (6,495) (4,566)
Interest on convertible notes paid BT BRREERE (400) -
Interest on bank loans paid BRITE A E (1,904) (2,140)

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED @ #BE5EZRERLF
Annual Report 2014/15 | 2014/15 FERSE

63



64

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #aREeRER

For thewear endedh3T\March 2015 BHZ —T—RAF=A=+—RHItFE
(Expfessed in Horlg Kang'dollars) (AT 271)

Net cash generated from financing REBETEHz2HE

activities BE

Increase in cash and cash ReRBESZSEYWIEM
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents ROUAB—HZRERES
at 1 April ZED

Effect of foreign exchange rate Exgm g
changes

Cash and cash equivalents R=EA=+—-HZzHRERK
at 31 March HEeZEEY

Major non-cash transactions:

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the proceeds from issue of
a convertible note to a director of HK$20,000,000 were satisfied
by setting off an equivalent amount of outstanding owing by the
Company to that director (see note 22).

The notes on pages 65 to 160 form part of the consolidated
financial statements.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2015 2014

—Z—hfF —T—OF

Note HK$°000 HK$’000
HisF FET FET
126,369 65,957

82,519 25,163

99,647 73,546

787 938

182,953 99,647

EXFRERS :

HE-_Z--NF=A=+—HIFEE HES
BT AR iR 2 FT15 3K 38 20,000,000 7 7T -
EEBIREARRERNZEET 2 AEESTHS

E(RME22)

FEO5EFE 160 A ZMENMFHRAVBHRER

— 8 -

EEEZRERDT
2014/15 FE#RE



Company information

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 21 May
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares have
been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 19 November 20083.

The Company is domiciled in the Cayman Islands and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and 4th Floor, Sands Building,
17 Hankow Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
respectively.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
March 2015 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) and the Group’s interests in joint
ventures.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014/15

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

NAEEH

EFEERERIARAARTD DR -F
E_FRAA-T-HARBEREHEER
FR2BRADE(—NA—FEHI = - B4R
BRIEFNHASEHSEMK LSRR L
ERRATR - MERNE-ZT=F1+—H
THHERTEHARZMERAF (15
R RIEMR(TRIZEMR ) £ e

RRARIANRSHSR/AZE  AMER
N EEEEHE DRI Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands &
BEBNERDBEZEOE1I7THRFTERES
=

FESITEE
(a) EBHI=EEH

HE-_Z—RAF=-A=1+—HLHF
EZHREeVMBRERBEARALE
MEAR(GEIANER])UARASE
BRa s s o

AR MBBRERDREMBERE
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A ke RBEEGTMAS
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EREEMBHREEN  FEE
AHEA(TEEGTER ) KRE)
BB ARG RAREERBRD
ZHRBERERSE - WEHRA VR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
Of these, the following developments are relevant to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Amendments to Recoverable amount disclosures for non-

HKAS 36 financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure
requirements for impaired non-financial assets. Among
them, the amendments expand the disclosures required
for an impaired asset or cash-generating unit whose
recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of
disposal.

The above amendments do not have significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new or revised HKFRSs
that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period (see note 36).

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the financial instruments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
stated at their fair values (see note 2(f)).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on these
consolidated financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income or loss
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
owners of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(j)(ii).

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or the Company and other parties contractually agree
to share control of the arrangement, and have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

Joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(e) and (i)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the joint venture. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2(j)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in equity securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

(9

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

When the investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 2(j)(i)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments
are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they

expire.

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(j)(ii).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment (except for
construction in progress), less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

10.0% — 33.3%
10.0% — 33.3%
10.0% — 33.3%

Machinery

Furniture and fixtures

Office and computer
equipment

20.0% or over the
remaining terms of

Leasehold improvements

leases (whichever is
shorter)
Motor vehicles 20.0% — 30.0%
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the estimated
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct
labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing costs, where applicable. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(j)(ii)).
Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful life of 5 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(if)

Leased assets (Continued)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

)

(i)

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
such as a default or

— a breach of contract,
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,

economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in joint ventures recognised
using the equity method (see note 2(d)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 2(j)(ii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with note 2(j)(ii).

— For trade and other current receivables, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014/15

2

FESHBE#)

)

(M)

BERMEE)

REFEFFZRERAMERTE
wE (&)

fiaf £ EL 12 B R RU (B I&5 1R SRR R A
i &% Bl A T AT % B 4 B B SRR (B
BREEZEMHBE - AREER
EREBEHED - BEBBEED NG
EYEEZRHREBENEEFE
3 45 e SRR 1B B 1R T IR B 7 X 2 B
[ERER

BEEEEZEEEEEETH
5 MERLIEE B R IE I E A FE IR
RIEMERZMEBEMNS - A7
Uiz [a] 14 4 48, /5 F] &8 18 36 3F A BE 14 152
RRIBRON » FERLER T - RERZIH
BEEECABERLIE 245E
E M R U B MR R - AR ST A
WEzeRERERYKE S HRER
Hoh JE WO IAMSY - R %(E
BEBEMRNBEBRATAEZEBEIT
GRE - HRWEEEF ABER
ZEREERERALD - BHERZ
H A8 f B & W0l = B MsH
ZEENBEER o

BEEERERATF
2014/15 FEHRE

77



78

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

)

(if)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— intangible assets;

— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

)

(ii)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

o

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(j)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number
of shares that would be issued on conversion and the
value of the consideration that would be received at
that time do not vary, are accounted for as compound
financial instruments which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible notes is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component
is recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the convertible notes
reserve until either the note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the convertible notes reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred
to share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the
convertible notes reserve is released directly to
accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(i)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest
and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand and deposits with banks and securities
brokers that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 28BS + HLABITTHIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

(i)

(ii)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the government
in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute, based
on a certain percentage of payroll, to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. Contributions to this retirement benefit
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
as incurred except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories at the end of the reporting
period.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share-based payment reserve within equity
(see note 2(r)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(r)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which the Group receives services or goods from its
directors, employees and other eligible participants as
consideration for share options of the Company. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the Black
Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based payment
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based payment reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based payment reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to accumulated losses).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

®

Income tax (Continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014/15

BB TTIIR)

2

FESTHER®)

(s)

(t)

Fris®t (&)
- EEMBEEERAE:ZFE
ElBEVARR—HBHKE
LA T E A — BB Z TSR
B

e}
3

|
=

— &

B

w5

\
/

- THAERVER ZF
ERGTEERNAEARE
BIER IR A BB ERE
FERIAE EWE 2 F @
RREE IR F AR R
REMMBAEENBE
EHNBREREER
BEZRESERRE -

BERIREE

EARBARBEFMHMIR A
RIAMEERME MBEEZEERA
BEAMEGEN G REEHAISEZ
et - AHBRAXESETAZE
EREREE - WERZKREEE
EXR AIBEBEAESRBEEEMN
B2 BEHER -

i 1R AT BE B 78 Hh AR B et - S
RS2 RATHHE
BEABE  RIERBREREZ
AT BEMEIR T E IR RIME R o B AT e
ZEEEEE-BARZERKREN
HIRFLBEHIRR T AR A E
FIESABE T IARKE - FRIFEE
mim 2 AT R ME DR EL I o

EEEZRERDT
2014/15 FE#RE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B %78 #E8A) -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

Sale of goods

Revenue from the distribution sale of cosmetic and skin
care products and the sale of health, beauty and related
products is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the provision of beauty and slimming
services

Revenue from the provision of beauty and slimming
services is recognised in profit or loss in proportion
to the stage of completion of the service contract.
Revenue is also recognised in profit or loss in respect
of the deferred income upon expiry of the service
contract.

Franchise fees income

Franchise fees income is recognised on an accrual
basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Management fee income

Management fee income is recognised when services
are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u)

(v)

(vi)

(v)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Referral fee income

Referral fee income is recognised when customers
referred by the Group to other parties and services are
rendered to the customers by the other parties.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005,
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill
arising on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired
before 1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of
the foreign operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantive period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(x) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vil)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected to

influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

dealings with the entity.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014/15

BB TTIIR)

e MR ERAR MR

2 FEEHBE#E)

(x) BBEAL(E)

(b) 1h1£T‘JL/{T1§E1¢1DﬁH AIRXE

g fr

(SRS

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

REEBR

ZERBRAEERE—
EE 22K B RFGRT
ERRA - MBRAR
RIRWE R EHEERH
&) o

ERRmBERZH
BRAHAELER(ES
—ERBAKBRAZE
BoRKERRZHEER
AAERE) -
MEEBYRRA—F=
TZRERE-

ERAFE-_HER
ZRELE mMmR—%
BRZE=-HERBZ®
LRE] e
ZERAANEEYER
SEEMECEBZE
BRwmm&zEAKRE
FETE -

% B (a) A A
s KRR

(@)(i) P a8t Bl 2 A+ B &%
ERTEEAREN
S RRER(HZERE
BRADNZEBEEEA

=
o

\
A

RZBAANLTZOBRARRERERE
TEERAHAIZEZALHIZ

AETREZREKE -

EEEZRERDT
2014/15 FE#RE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(y) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

3 Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the distribution sale
of cosmetic and skin care products, provision of beauty
and slimming services, provision of franchise services, sale
of health, beauty and related products and investment in
securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

3 Turnover (Continued)

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods supplied

to customers, net of discounts, returns, value added tax or

other sales taxes; service income from provision of beauty

and slimming services, net of discounts and franchise fees

income. The amount of each significant category of revenue

recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin

care products

Provision of beauty and slimming

services*

Provision of franchise services
Sale of health, beauty and related

products

REEE LB RS

PRI & 1R TS

Included in the revenue from provision of beauty and slimming

services was an amount of HK$19,797,000 (2014: HK$30,023,000)
arising from realisation of deferred income upon expiry of the

service contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 28BS + HLABITTHIR)

4 Other revenue and net income 4 HWBERWAFEEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Other revenue Hih gz
Referral fee income NEEBIA 8,703 10,562
Management fee income BEIEBIA 3,734 5,097
Interest income MEBUTA 348 328
Others Efb 6 9
12,791 15,996
Other net income HAaW A F58
Subsidy income from the PRC S GSECEI N
government 2,964 2,685
Net loss on disposal of property, plant [HEWE « 2SN RG22 BB F58
and equipment (379) (209)
Net foreign exchange gain [& 5 Uk 55 58 2,306 28
Net foreign exchange gain: reclassified [ ¥ URz5F58 « MBS E R — M
from equity on deregistration of a MEB AR EBERENHE
subsidiary 5 —
Others Efb 538 855
5,434 3,359
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Kong/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHEBASN - HLABTTIIR)

Profit before taxation is arrived after charging:

Y2

5 Profit'before taxation 5 ERBANRR

BB RS M E IR T 5% IR

2015 2014
—Z—hfF —T-mEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
(a) Finance costs: BB A
Interest on bank loans IRITERF B 1,904 2,140
Interest on convertible notes AR ER 55 1,836 849
Interest on other long-term liability EmERHHEEZHE 684 658
4,424 3,647
(b) Staff costs: (b) ETRA
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e ER R EMEF 68,099 70,553
Contributions to defined contribution R EBHARKETE 2 B3R
retirement plans 10,121 10,886
78,220 81,439
(c) Other items: HMIER :
Cost of inventories sold and services DEFERDIRMHIRG 25K &>
provided* 1,335,614 1,189,750
Auditors’ remuneration ZE BN & 1,532 1,497
Amortisation of intangible assets m A EME 1,814 1,664
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - WBEREETE
equipment 9,385 8,278
Provision for impairment losses on BEBEEE
— trade receivables — [EWRE S8 63 132
— other receivables — HtmEUsRIE 270 1,191
Write off of T
— other receivables — HmEURIE 9,931 -
— deposits paid - BfF&S 1,458 —
— amount due from a related party — B —RBEEALTIA 6,321 -
Operating lease rentals: minimum lease £4MEME  RERMHEE
payments
— property rentals — WMEHS 25,200 26,545

Cost of inventories sold and services provided includes
HK$1,339,000 (2014: HK$1,201,000) relating to staff costs and
depreciation, which amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 5(b) for each of

these types of expenses.

EEFERCIRERB 2R ABEESBE
TRA R HTE 21,339,000 L (= ZF—Y
£ 11,201,000 70) * Ze BN S ER
T ABIET A ESOBS P 2 iR AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

6

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss

(@)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

represents:

6 HEBRRRAZAED

(@ *HREBZRAZBER

2015 2014
— —TmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax EH#E — hESEFREHR
Provision for the year (note 23(a)) FNEAE (M5 25(a) 8,261 7,766
Overprovision in respect of prior years BAFEBEEE (135) (668)
8,126 7,098
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary EENBOERERE
differences (note 23(b)(i)) (HtaE231)0)) (308) 189
Income tax expense FriS i &2 7,818 7,287

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made
for 2015 (2014: HK$NIil) as the companies in the
Group either have sustained tax losses or have
no assessable profits for Hong Kong Profits Tax
purposes. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries
is charged at the appropriate current rates of
taxation ruling in relevant countries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (Continued)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

represents: (Continued)

(i

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC derived since 1 January
2008 is subject to withholding income tax at rates
of 5% or 10% upon the distribution of such profits
to foreign investors or companies incorporated
in Hong Kong or for other foreign investors,
respectively. Pursuant to the grandfathering
arrangements of the PRC tax law, dividends
receivable by the Group from PRC subsidiaries
in respect of the undistributed profits derived
prior to 31 December 2007 are exempt from the
withholding income tax.

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, no deferred tax
liabilities have been recognised in respect of tax
that would be payable on the unremitted profits
of the PRC subsidiaries derived since 1 January
2008 as the directors of the Company is in a
position to control the dividend policies of the
PRC subsidiaries and no distribution of such
profits is expected to be declared from the PRC
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

6

Income tax in the consolidated statement 6

of profit or loss (Continued)

(o)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b)
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

Profit before taxation
Less: share of losses of joint ventures

Notional tax on profit before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable
to profits/losses in the jurisdictions
concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Overprovision in respect of prior years

Others

Actual tax expense

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2015 2014
—E—RF —T—HF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
B 75 A1 45,812 14,932
R ISR EEE (2,047) (3,669)
47,859 18,601
PR AR A 2 BEBIE -
REARBBEREER
wA BB R
(4,683) 2,341
A MBRRAS 2 B2 5,340 3,842
BEARMIRA 2 M E (850) (757)
RERERZEY
Mg E (1,591) (736)
RERRBARIEEE 2
Mg E 9,408 5,100
HABEARBRTIEEEZ
WiEE (297) (2,212)
BT FE 2 EBERE (135) (668)
HAb 626 377
BEEREMIBRY 7,818 7,287
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the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Executive directors

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley

Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

Mr. Mui Wai Sum (appointed
on 12 December 2014)

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin

Ms. Hui Yat Lam

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy

100

ors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383 of

E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B Rk M=t

dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f& 2 & AR -

BB TR

7 EEMe

RIEEE R RGBS 383 M EHIRE 2
ExMamT

Salaries, allowances Retirement scheme

Directors’ fees and benefits in kind contributions Total
- kA ¥&  2HRENNE BRI RS
2014 2014 2014 2014
—E-mE —T-mE T-mE keSS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
HITES
REMEL
REBELE
1BEREE
(R=T—m%
TZAT-RE
)
BUFHTES
FEEEE
FERLE
FERL
sk L

EHEZRERAE
2014/15 FEHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2014: one) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other three (2014: four) individuals are as follows:

e hEbMe
RIRFT IR

Salaries and other emoluments
Retirement scheme contributions

The emoluments of the three (2014: four) individuals with the

highest emoluments are within the following bands:

HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000 THITE 1,000,000 # 7T

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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hEEeEHFALF ME(ZFE-NEF:
—R)REF EHWSFBHRERHME
7TeRI=ZR(ZF—WF: WB)ALLZ

Be@zEm T
2015 2014
—E-hF —E=—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
2,282 2,935
45 54
2,327 2,989

=H(ZZ2-0OF : mB)REHALTZM

BN TIIHE

2015
—E-—HEF
Number of
individuals

AE

2014
—E—mEF
Number of
individuals
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Kong/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHEBASN - HLABTTIIR)

9 Earnpifigs per share 9 BRER
(a) Basic earnings per share (@) BREXER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based e AR BF TR AN QR HEA A
on the profit attributable to owners of the Company of & {5 & F #4937,527,0007% Jo(=
approximately HK$37,527,000 (2014: HK$3,221,000) T — PO 4F ¢ 3,221,000 7T ) R &
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of NERITEEKR 2 MEFEHHELD
approximately 1,059,425,000 shares (2014 (restated): 1,059,425,000 & (= & — PO F (&
580,622,000 shares) in issue during the year, calculated =%1): 580,622,000 B)stE T ¢
as follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZAERIEFIGE
2015 2014
—E-AF T4
’000 "000
FiR FhR
(restated)
(&%)
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April AIOA—BETEEik 695,223 579,353
Effect of rights issue (note 27(c)(iii)) WA 2 (K iz 27(c)i) 254,416 —
Effect of conversion of convertible BN EIR 2
notes (note 22) (Hiatzz) 76,518 -
Effect of shares issued under placings RIBRREBRITRHD 2FE
(note 27(c)(iii)) (#1527 (c)ii) 33,268 1,269
Weighted average number of ordinary R=ZA=+—B2E@E®’IN
shares at 31 March e 1,059,425 580,622
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for UEZT—RAFR-_T—NF 2 EBRZ
2015 and 2014 above has been adjusted for the rights MEEHHEEFAR_E—UFNLA =1
issue which was completed on 26 September 2014 (see A ek 2 AR 1 AR (R 5E 27 (c) i) ©

note 27(c)(iii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 28BS + HLABITTHIR)

9 Earnings per share (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 March 2015 is based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$39,363,000 and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,341,658,000 shares, calculated as
follows:

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
(diluted)

9 SERERE)
(b) SRBIRF

HE-_Z—HF=A=1+—HI*F
ExSREERFDIERARHE
A FE 1 & 7 #939,363,0007% 7T &
1,341,658,000 % & 3 % hn # F 5
HETHENOT -

(i) FRAEEAELEF (#E)

HK$°000
FEIT
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AN &#EH A 1L % 7l 37,527
After tax effect of effective interest in the AR EREE D c ERER 2
liability component of convertible notes ke 1,836
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AR EIHEHB AFE(LHF (H5E)
(diluted) 39,363

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(diluted)

(i) ZBERINEFIGE (#E)

HK$’000
FET
Weighted average number of ordinary shares W-ZE—AF=ZA=+—HAZ @R
at 31 March 2015 I8 1,069,425
Effect of conversion of convertible notes sEmn R EIR 2 B (HiF22)
(note 22) 282,233
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R-Z—HRFE=F=+—HZEER
(diluted) at 31 March 2015 a8 (EE) 1,341,658
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9 Earnings per share (Continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (Continued)

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(diluted) (Continued)

The assumed exercise of the outstanding share options
has anti-dilutive effect and has therefore been excluded
from the above calculation.

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2014 is the same as the basic earnings per
share as the assumed exercise of the outstanding share
options and convertible notes has anti-dilutive effect.

10 Segment reporting

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the Executive Directors that are
used to make strategic decisions. The Executive Directors
review the Group’s financial information mainly from business
lines prospective. Accordingly, the Group’s operating
segments are:

(i) Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products

(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services

(i)  Franchise operations (including sale of health, beauty
and related products to franchised shops)

(iv) Sale of health, beauty and related products

(v)  Investment in securities

The business segment of investment in securities was new to
the Group and the business has been commenced in March
2015.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of reportable
segment results. This measurement basis excludes certain
other revenue, other net income, finance costs, share of
results of joint ventures and unallocated expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

9 BRERN#

by ESREBBERANE)

(i) ZBBERNEFE(BE)(E)
ARNBERITERTEEREESR
BEFE WA TREELIE
&HE -

R AR T R 770 B AR A K AT 32
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B Rk M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 2 & =885 - ¥ ABTTIIR)

10 Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment assets mainly exclude certain property, plant
and equipment, current tax assets and other assets that
are managed on a central basis. Segment liabilities mainly
exclude current income tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities
and other liabilities that are managed on a central basis.

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

10 7 EHREE)

DREEIBTERETYE HBILR
e ENHAEEREMETERECZE
E-DBABIETEREHMERE
B EEHBAAGERAEMETERZA

ﬁo

(a) 2oWXE BERAEE

Distribution sale of
cosmetic and Provision of beauty and Sale of health, beauty
skin care products Investment in slimming services and related products
ARBELRE securities BHZAR Franchise operations HERR 23R Total
#HER EEEv F R nESEER EBER a4
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
E-pE I-RE I-pE E-pE I-RE Z-pE
HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
7Er FET AT FET FAT AT
Reportable segment revenue fom EESSPRES B
external customers 1241842 - 89,509 30,1% 1370 1,362,916
Reportable segment results PESpEE 27,999 - 1,801 (1,004) 5% 2,301
Unallocated corporate expenses FARDARE (7,143)
Proft from operations iyl 22,248
Finance costs BEA (3647)
Share of losses of oint ventures ElEAE0E(5R) /& (3,669)
Proft before taxation RAaER
Income tax expense i
Profit for the year Efigfl
Provision for impaiment losses on REEEER
— Trade receivables —EhESRE 132 - - -
— Other receivables — EtoRlisua - - 1,191 -
Write offof fi#
— Other receivables — EtRliE - - - -
~ Deposts paid - Bffié - - - -
— Amount due from a related party — RY-2BEALHE - - - -
Amortsation of intangible assets Bl AERE - - 1,664 -
Depreciation of property, plant 0% BERIENE
and equipment 1,699 5,708 832
Segment assefs AHEE
— Property, plant and equipment — 0% BERRE 3631 - 2782 1,107 32,563
~ Intangible assets —BlEE - - 6,722 - 6,722
— Interests in jint ventures —NEELEER - - 2047 - 2047
~ Financial assets t fair value - RATEABEZ SR
ihrough proft or oss BE - - - - -
~ Other assefs —EhEE 206,806 - 104,181 16,801 308,491
Unallocated corporate assets KARDAEE 40,791
Total assets BEnE
Segrent s AB8E (117,963 - 30 (1028 (180794
Unallocated corporate libilties FAENAEE (73,060)
Total iablties Bl
Additions to segment non-curent assets  AFEFHEERE 1739 - 10,736 465
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Kong/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHEBASN - HLABTTIIR)

10 Segment reporting (Continued)
(b) Geographical information
The Group’s revenue from external customers

and information about its non-current assets by
geographical locations are as follows:

10 o¥HE#)

(b)

1t 325 B

REENNSEP 2B R BERAEIFE
MEBEEZEARIEMEME S0
™

The PRC Hong Kong Total

HE EE RS
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
—F-1F —T-NF =—B-HF _—T NF =F-BF —T-OF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FHET FET FET

Revenue from external SN 2 Iz
customers 1,437,519 1,301,368 24,337 61,548 = 1,461,856 1,362,916
Non-current assets FRBEE 23,386 24,487 11,423 17,228 34,809 41,715
(c) Major customers (c) FEEXF

During the year ended 31 March 2015, two customers
(2014: two) with whom transactions exceeded 10% of
the Group’s revenue. Revenue from distribution sale of
cosmetic and skin care products to these customers in
the PRC is set out below:

Customer A Z2EA
Customer B =FB

106 SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REBEE-_ZT-—HF=A=+—HI
FE -ME(CE-OF: BE)F
FZzRAMEAEEKZm10% AL -
M E R B %P 2 8 iH St b
B E fm 2 s s5Ian T

2015 2014
—Z—hfF —ET-HEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
314,390 215,021
242,458 269,461
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHsEBAN - ¥HLABTTIIR)

11 Property, plant and equipment 11 Y% BBERRE

Officeand  Leasehold
Furniture computer improve-
and fixtures  equipment ments Motor  Construction
Machinery BRE BAER ik vehicles in progress Total
B EE%E B NELE RE EEBIE a#
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET AT AT AT & &
Cost: [
At 1 April 2013 RZE-=FmA-H 19,045 5,059 8,962 28,474 10,620 8,713 80,873
Exchange adjustments EREE 81 36 65 279 154 151 766
Additions HRE 1,336 1,732 1,142 7,336 1,380 75 13,001
Transfers it 4 - - - 8,939 - (8,939) -
Disposals e (638) (408) (68) (1,930) - - (8,044
At 31 March 2014 R-B-mF
ZA=t+-HR 19,824 6,419 10,101 43,098 12,154 - 91,596
At 1 April 2014 RZE-ZFNA-A 19,824 6,419 10,101 43,098 12,154 - 91,596
Exchange adjustments ERLAE 56 27 38 229 97 3 450
Additions BE 1,073 10 80 3,751 1,143 497 6,554
Disposals e (509) (388) (625) (9,624) (113) - (11,259)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-1F
=R=t+-H 20,444 6,068 9,594 37,454 13,281 500 87,341
Accumulated depreciation: Z3HE :
At 1 April 2013 R-2-Z£mA-H 15,889 4,362 6,428 21,268 5,094 - 53,081
Exchange adjustments EREE 57 30 44 268 73 - 472
Charge for the year FRFE 1,344 383 1,012 3,588 1,951 - 8278
Written back on disposals ~ HEFEE (616) (280) 48) (1,867) - - (2.,811)
At 31 March 2014 R-E-mF
ZA=t+-HR 16,674 4,495 7,431 28,252 7,118 - 58,970
At 1 April 2014 RZF-MENA-A 16,674 4,495 7,431 23,252 7,118 - 58,970
Exchange adjustments ERLAE 38 15 28 103 60 - 244
Charge for the year ERRE 1,331 40 895 5,143 1,606 - 9,385
Written back on disposals &R (446) (379 (579 (9,380) (55) - (10,839)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-1F
=A=1-H 17,597 4,541 7,775 19,118 8,729 - 57,760
Carrying amount: RS
At 31 March 2015 RZB-1%
=R=+-H 2,847 1,527 1,819 18,336 4,552 500 29,581
At 31 March 2014 R-B-mF
=R=+-H 3,150 1,924 2,670 19,846 5,036 - 32,626
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEZEREBRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Kong/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHEBASN - HLABTTIIR)

12 Intangible assets 12 BELEE
Website costs
8 3h B A
HK$’000
FET
Cost: 3% N
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014, RZE—=FWMA—H - ZF—NF
1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 ZAZ+—H —E-NUFENA—HK
—E-—RF=A=1+—H 9,072
Accumulated amortisation: REitE#e .
At 1 April 2013 N_E—=FmWHA—H 686
Charge for the year F A 1,664
At 31 March 2014 RZE—MF=A=+—H 2,350
At 1 April 2014 RZE—MFEMA—H 2,350
Charge for the year FAEEE 1,814
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—RAF=A=+—AH 4,164
Carrying amount: FRMEIE :
At 31 March 2015 RZE—RAF=A=+—AH 4,908
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—WF=A=+—8H 6,722
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “general FRZEEBRT A AGAEBERZ 8
and administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement RTEBREX ] -

of profit or loss.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED | #EHEZRERLE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

13 Goodwill

Cost:

At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014,
1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015

Accumulated impairment:

At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014,
1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015

Carrying amount:

At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015

13 BHE

BA

R-_E—=ZFNYA—H  —ZT—N0NF
—A=+—H - ZZE—MNFNA—BX
—E-RF=A=1+—H

REHREE -
RZE—=FNUA—H - —_=—UF

—A=+—H ZZ—NWENMA—BXK
—E-RF=A=1+—H

AN
N

ISR AL

HK$’000
FET

341

21

320

Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s

accounting policies as set out in note 2(e).

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been

allocated to three individual cash-generating units (CGUSs)

comprising five (2014: five) subsidiaries, engaging in the

BE R T 2(e) TEl 2 N EE S S BR

o

-
i

RREARTS  BEESFoEE=1E
BAB(ZZ—NF  J2fE)WHEQRHER
ZERNReELESMNREELESMN) © &

following business segment:

Provision of beauty and slimming services

MEARDRIREEA TR

RHEE KA IR

Provision of management consultancy services 12t 12 & IR

Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care
products

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014/15

DHHE RN EEER

BEEERERATF
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2015 and
2014
—E-RER
—E-0OF
HK$'000
FET

210
73

37

320
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

13

14

GoodWwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period.

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculations are:

2015 and 2014

5% — 15%
12%

— Gross margin
— Discount rate

Management determined the budgeted gross margin
based on past performance and its expectation for market
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks.

Interests in and amounts due from/to joint
ventures

G B EFE
e A &R

Share of net liabilities
Amount due from a joint venture

Amounts due to joint ventures JERT& & 3ERIA

The amounts due from or to joint ventures are unsecured,
interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014/15

BB TTIIR)

13

BHEe)

BeEA SR Y IS ERE A EET

GIEET o EHE A RRIREEE

BOME AEGNBEEEL Y BER

SR -

EREEFE AR T BBERA -
—E-RER-B—NE

— EF%
— AR

5% — 15%
12%

BEERBEAERRLELMSER A
HMEBEREENE - IERZMHRES
AT - WRBREFERR ©

14 REELECRERER &
TeEEzE2RE
2015 2014
—2-AF —FmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(6,028) (3,981)
6,028 6,028
— 2,047
1,854 1,896
JEN SR A S ERBAERE 28
FEETERE -
BHEERERAD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHsEBAN - ¥HLABTTIIR)

14 Interests in and amounts due from/to joint
ventures (Continued)

Details of joint ventures, which are accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statement, at 31
March 2015 are as follows:

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued and
Name of company operations paid up capital

ACEL: BEBE ERTRARKRAHE

Wealthy Sound Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong 10,000 shares

SRERAR BB/ BA 10,000 AR A& 15

EHEEMEARELR)  The PRC/The PRC Registered capital of
BRAA US$150,000

EFEEHERLR) FE/HE FME A 150,000% T
BRAA

Wealthy Sound Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
EHEaMERUER)ERAQE (together “Wealthy Sound
Group”), are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market
prices are not available.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014/15

14 REELXCRERER &

e EIREE)

NE-RF=A=+—H - KA
MR AR BETIIRZ A B EH BN

g R

1

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

BERBREERLH
Direct Indirect Principal activity

H# Mg IEEH

- 50%  Investment holding
REER

— 50%  Provision of beauty and
slimming services

REXALHERE

CEERAARAEZENBAREHES
BERUER)BERAR (SE EEEE )
AL EERTIGABMEZIFLTERE

o

i

BEEERERATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Kong/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHEBASN - HLABTTIIR)

14 REELECRERER &
TEELEIRE 2

14 Interests in and amounts due from/to joint
ventures (Continued)

SEREEZWBERRL(C M EMN S
BRZZRELHARE)  UREESTE
BWRZEREECHBRRENAT :

Summarised financial information of Wealthy Sound Group,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and a
reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated

112

financial statements, are disclosed below:

2015 2014
—E-—FfF —E—-mEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets IEMBNEE 126 259
Current assets MEVEE 8,934 13,597
Current liabilities nBBE (18,685) (17,354)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (4,189) (4,464)
Net liabilities BEFHE (13,814) (7,962)
Included in the above assets and SFALMEEREE
liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents BeMMReESEY 1,902 6,680
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade HE¢RIBE(TEEENE SR
and other payables and provision) TE Ko LA JE - SR IE R ) - —
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding RIS RHEB(TEERNES
trade and other payables and provision) — FRIE K H i JE (< 5008 R B4 ) - -
Revenue W = 4,976 11,612
Loss for the year FAFIE (5,761) (7,338)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hiv2m (BE), Mz (91) 24
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEELZE (5,852) (7,314)
Included in the above loss: T A SIS -
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - WRRERBINE
equipment (26) (879)
Interest income A B A 13 33
Interest expense B = —
Income tax expense FS®if = = (1,165)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest HAEEREZREE
in Wealthy Sound Group 2R 2 ¥R
Wealth Sound Group’s net liabilities EREEABTE (13,814) (7,962)
Group’s effective interest REBEERER 50% 50%
Group’s share of Wealthy Sound Group’s AEBEEGESEER Y AEFEH
net liabilities (6,028) (3,981)
Amount due from Wealthy Sound Group  JEUNEE £ B A 6,028 6,028
Carrying amount in the consolidated WiRE BB ERE 2 BREE
financial statements - 2,047

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

15

16

Inventories

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position
comprise:

Merchandise BURY G

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense is as follows:

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEGFEZEREE
Write down of inventories FEMR

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

15 &

RAEMHIRARAZFERHE

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET F#T
18,712 26,272

ERRAXZEFESEATOT

2015 2014
—E-hHEF —E—mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
1,327,527 1,182,109
225 174
1,327,752 1,182,283

16 RAFEFABBECEHEE

Listed equity securities held-for-trading at MNEBEFIEER L HRAZ A -

fair value in Hong Kong (note) BAFENE)

Note: The fair values of listed equity securities are determined based on
the quoted market closing price available on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange at the end of the reporting period. As at 31 March
2015, the Group held 30,000,000 shares, representing 3.13% in
the issued share capital in Kwan On Holdings Limited, which was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability with its
shares listed on the GEM of Stock Exchange (stock code: 8305).

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014/15

2015 2014
—ZE—I1F —T-HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET

95,400 —

Hyat

ETBRAFE S Z R FE TR SRR
RFBIERTH 2 WMREETE - R=
T-RAF=-A=+—H AKEEH
30,000,000 g - EHERZERER R
ARRHEREFMAIZBERAA]
HEROREBERZAMAIZER LT BREOA
% : 8305) B EITIRAA)3.13% ©

EEEZRERAF

2014/15 FEHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Kong/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHEBASN - HLABTTIIR)

17 Trade and other receivables 17 BEWE SFIERHAEKRIE
2015 2014
—2-hfF —ZT—EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables JEUE 55108 140,115 155,574
Less: allowance for doubtful debts Ji - RERBE(KIZF17(b)
(note 17(b)) (764) (694)
139,351 154,880
Other receivables H A e U IR 73,573 56,166
Deposits and prepayments e RIEFFIE 42,223 22,549
115,796 78,715
Included in the Group’s deposits and prepayments were SHAXRERZIES NBNFRBEAES A
rental, utilities and other deposits amounting to approximately 3R e N H b 32 & #9 30,854,000 78 70 ( =
HK$30,854,000 (2014: HK$12,558,000), which are expected LT —PUF : 12,558,000/8 T) + TEEAR R
to be recovered or recognised as expenses after more than B—F BB SKERAERY - FTEEME
one year. All of the other trade and other receivables are WESHBEREMERZIEERNR—FRN
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses within W ek R AR -
one year.
Included in the Group’s other receivables were amounts ST AR EE 7 E b fE Ui 3R T8 5 FE Uk 4 e
due from slimming business partners and consultants of ERB N EEE 2 28 464,297,000 78
approximately HK$64,297,000 (2014: HK$49,333,000), JT(=Z—PO4 : 49,333,000 7T) (30K
net of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately RER B #4914,254,00078 o (ZF —
HK$14,254,000 (2014: HK$13,984,000) and advances to 118,984,000/ 7)) : kAE TR
staff of approximately HK$1,352,000 (2014: HK$2,435,000). 7 RIB#91,352,00078 o (=& — PO £ -

2,435,000/ 7T) °

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED @ #BE5EZRERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

17 Trade and other receivables (Continueq) 17 EWESREREMEWRFIE %)
(a) Ageing analysis (a) ERERDHT
As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing AZFREAR - FEUNE S FRIE(ER %
analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date SHE AR RZRBEBIER)Z
and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: BRER DA T ¢
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Less than 1 month LR 11EA 107,601 130,525
1 to 2 months 1E2M@A 24,851 20,124
More than 2 months but less than ZH2@ARBLRA4MEA
4 months 2,741 733
More than 4 months but less than ZR4AEAEBLR121EA
12 months 1,294 1,766
More than 12 months Z 1218 A 2,864 1,732
139,351 154,880
Trade receivables are usually due within 30 to 90 days JEMWE 55018 — R B R A HRE
from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s S0E90HAE - REBEEFEEHRZ
credit policy are set out in note 28(a). HE—HHBEHNKITE28(@) °

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED @ #BE5EZRERLF
Annual Report 2014/15 | 2014/15 FERSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

17 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade receivables directly (see note 2(j)(i)).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debt
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, are as follows:

At 1 April RIA—H
Impairment loss recognised BR . REEE
Exchange adjustments BEE 3, A 28

At 31 March R=A=+—H

At 31 March 2015, the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately HK$764,000 (2014: HK$694,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that the
chance of recovery is remote. Consequently, specific
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$764,000 (2014:
HK$694,000) was recognised.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014/15

BB TTIIR)

17 BWESREREMEWREEZ)

(b)

FEW B 5 R RE

W B 5 5RI8 2 R (8 &5 18 T 68 P
WARACER - BRIFAR B MU DX
RIAZ AR MERIE - ERRIBERT
BB B E E R R 5 SR M
(RPBEE23)0) °

FR - RREE(BEER R ARE

BHG)2B8BWT
2015 2014
—E—EF —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET F#T
694 562
63 132
7 —
764 694

R-_ZT—RAFZA=Z+—RH &%
B 2 U B 5 5 TE #) 764,000 7% 7T
(ZZ — P4 : 694,00078 7T ) # &
RETE R RE o ZIE R A & W
FIEEBAMER2EFERE - M
ERENEWE 2 AT R o
It RERFFRIEE764,0008 0(=
Z—PO4F : 694,000 T) EHER ©

EEEZRERDT
2014/15 FE#RE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 28BS + HLABITTHIR)

17 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 17

(c)

Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is

as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired

Less than 1 month past due

1 to 2 months past due

More than 2 months but less than
4 months past due

More than 4 months but less than
12 months past due

More than 12 months past due

B B A
BE1 =28 A
BEAZ N 2@ A
BLR4EAR
BEZ N AEAR
BALR1218 A
wHA12 @ A LA |

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired

relate to a wide range of customers for whom there

was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate

to a number of independent customers that have a

good track record with the Group. Based on past

experience, management believes that no impairment

allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as

there has not been a significant change in credit quality

and the balances are considered fully recoverable.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014/15

W E ZFE R EMEWEIE #)

(c) AMEEZEWKESHRE

b S A 71| B A 4 A R M R AR AE T
B 2 FEUR S 5 5RIR 2 fR ik o AT an

™
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
120,425 148,247
11,749 1,645
744 2,207
2,700 578
959 1,674
2,774 529
18,926 6,633
139,351 154,880

I 45 380 5 N 3 SORU(E 2 FE WK IR T
BERAWETPERCELEFE

B HE I R (B < R IR TS 6
ZENAEEFEERFERE LR
BUXFAR REBELR A
TR AR 28R - WERER
EHARZSERELRERE -

BEEERERATF
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(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

18 Amoatnts due from/to related parties

19

Amounts due from non-controlling FEU SEVE AR B 2 SR IR
interests
Amounts due from related companies JEW B BEE N T

(note) (Hta)

Amounts due to non-controlling interests  E FEFE MG RE 25 F0IE

Note: Certain directors of subsidiaries have significant influence over
these related companies.

The amounts due from or to related parties are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Bank loans

The bank loans are repayable within one year, and secured
by pledge of certain trade receivables amounting to
approximately HK$47,300,000 and personal guarantee by a
director of a subsidiary (2014: trade receivables amounting
to HK$31,971,000 and properties owned by certain staff
members of the Group).
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BB TTIIR)

18 FEU “FESBAE A LRI

2015 2014
—E—EfF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
6,861 6,319
1,923 3,066
8,784 9,385

- 1,511

e MERARzETESHZSAMER TR
BERTES -

MR ENEEALTRASELT 28
KB BREER -

19 RITER

WMITEREAR—FRNEE  TEHFLY
47,300,000 T2 & T FEMWE 5 I8 K Y
BRRAESZBAAEREERR(ZZE—
& E4E 5 FIA31,971,000/8 T A E
EETEIMHRAZME) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

20 Trade and other payables 20 BENESZRERHEMENSKIE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables BB 5508 51,758 42,364
Other payables and accrued charges HAih e I8 R ERTE A 70,315 57,075
122,073 99,439
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be Fi e E 55008 & H Ath JB 1~ SUIB TR B S
settled or recognised as income within one year or are R—FRNBESKER AW A EZERE

21

o

repayable on demand.

fi

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with AT Bt AFER E 5 508 R H M fE T 518
the following ageing analysis as of the end of the reporting ZIENE SRER MR ZRE DT ¢
period:
2015 2014
—E—REFE —E—mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Due within 1 month or on demand P 1 E A R 3pd Z sk S| ER 51,758 42,364
Amount due to a director 21 B —RESRE
The amount due to a director, Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, ENESRERBE -2 ZEAEEKE - ¢
is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. BRBIRERERE o
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22 Convertible notes

On 20 December 2013, the Company issued a 2%
per annum convertible note of principal amount with a
HK$20,000,000 to Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, a director
of the Company and 4% per annum convertible notes with
aggregate principal amounts of HK$30,000,000 to several
independent third parties (the “Placing Convertible Notes”),
respectively. The maturity dates of these convertible notes
are the third anniversary from the date of issue. Interest is
payable annually in arrears.

The holders of the convertible notes have the rights to
convert, on any business day from the date of issue of the
convertible notes until 5 business days before the maturity
date, the whole or part only, in an integral multiple of
HK$1,000,000 of the principal amount of the convertible
notes, into ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion
price of HK$0.137 (adjusted for the rights issue which was
completed on 26 September 2014 and placing of shares (see
note 27(c)(iii))). If the notes have not been converted, they
will be redeemed by the Company on the maturity date.

The Placing Convertible Notes were converted into
ordinary shares in November 2014. Accordingly, a total of
212,765,954 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued
on conversion.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

22 AERERE

R-E—=F+_"/F=-+H ARAD
BlEANBEEREME LT AEEE
#$20,000,000 % T2 FH| & 2% AT AR =
B URAEBEBLE = A RTASEE
#$30,000,000 B 7T 2 F I FH 4% AR E
BERSTBRERER]) - LEBRRERE
ZEIE ABITABB ZE=BF - A
TYR G FEZ A RTEAFIE o

ARREERB ABERAIRIREERET
BHEEER AN AEEEANM 2T
A ERKR0137 B T2 EBRE(EM
T-—MFENAZ+ABERZERREE
B A VB H 82 (BB 5 27 (c) (i) ) 45 AT R A%
EEEHDIBOBRAERAAEBR(E
#1,000,000 8L 2 EEEE) - WEE
KEEK - AR RERE BB ER -

REMBEREEERN T —NFE+— /8
AT - B REREDETAHS
212,765,954 = EE0.01 B T il
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 28BS + HLABITTHIR)

22 Convertible notes (Ccontinued)

22

The convertible notes issued have been split as to the liability

and equity components, as follows:

At 1 April

Principal amount of convertible notes
issued

Issue costs

Equity component

Effective interest expense
Interest paid
Conversion into ordinary shares

Liability component at 31 March

RIEA—H
BERTAIMREBR 2 AN

BITARAR

Rz A

BERMERX
BERFE
B ERK

R=A=+—Bz&E5H

The equity component is presented as convertible notes

reserve within equity. The effective interest rate of the liability

component is 4.11% (2014: 4.47%) per annum.

23 Income tax in the consolidated statement 23

of financial position

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

financial position represents:

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

— Provision for the year (note 6(a))

— Provisional tax paid

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AR ERE#)

ERTZARRERC O RE

BBy - FHBWT

{8 KA

2015 2014
—E-hF — o4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
48,324 —
— 50,000

— (600)

— (1,925)
48,324 47,475
1,836 849
(400) —
(30,470) —
19,290 48,324

mEMBRRRAZFAEB

() REEEMBMNRERRZEHB IR

55
2015 2014
—E—AF — P4
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
PR EATSH
— FREE(KaE6() 8,261 7,766
— BRI (6,615) (6,528)
1,646 1,238
BEEERERAR

2014/15 FEHE
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(Expréssed in Hong, Kong/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHEBASN - HLABTTIIR)

23 Income tax in the consolidated statement 23 GKEHMBMRRARAZFABR (&)
of financial position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax (b) EIEFHIE

(i) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: () EEFRZELEHELRE:
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in REETBRRNRER ZIELERIE
the consolidated statement of financial position and the BEIXHENFRNZEEHIAT

movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation

in excess of
the related

depreciation Other
allowances temporary

WEBH differences

HERE Hi g Total
& =5 e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FEIT FET
Deferred tax arising from: DT EEMEEZELE
FIE :
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FIMA—H 316 4,077 4,393
Exchange adjustments bE 5 B 5 65 70
Charged/(credited) to profit or B18z5Hk% (5t AEzF)
loss (note 6(a)) (Wit 6(a) 654 (465) 189
At 31 March 2014 RZZE—MFE=A=+—H 975 3,677 4,652
At 1 April 2014 R_E—MFEMA—H 975 3,677 4,652
Exchange adjustments PE 3 R 6 30 36
Charged/(credited) to profit or BBz (5t A#EzE)
loss (note 6(a)) (K17t 6(a)) — (308) (308)
At 31 March 2015 RZE—RAF=HA=+—H 981 3,399 4,380

122 SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED @ #BE5EZRERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

23

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (Continued)

(b)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

At 31 March 2015, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax liabilities relating to temporary
differences of approximately HK$19,283,000 (2014:
HK$13,019,000).

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

At 31 March 2015, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of approximately HK$194,213,000 (2014:
HK$147,336,000) and deductible temporary differences
of approximately HK$8,442,000 (2014: HK$5,232,000)
as it is not probable that future taxable profits, against
which the assets can be utilised, will be available
in any relevant tax jurisdiction or entity. Of the total
tax losses, approximately HK$60,605,000 (2014:
HK$28,584,000) will expire within 5 years and the
remaining tax losses of approximately HK$113,608,000
(2014: HK$118,752,000) have no expiry date under the
current tax legislation.
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23 HEMBRREKRAZFAEBH &)

(b)

(i)

(iii)

EERIE ()

FRERBELEFERE -

W-_ZE—RF=ZA=+—8 &%
I 7 4% T B A2 R4V 19,283,000 7
T(—Z—P04 : 13,019,000 7T )
RELEFIEEE -

M o

R—_ZE—RAF=ZA=+—8  H
REEMMEERB A EZERLE
KA RRERB EAA
BREE NAKSELE RE
5 18 &5 48 49194,213,00058 (=
= — U 4F : 147,336,000/ 7T ) &
A 0B OE K E 8 498,442,000 8
(= T — g 4 :5,232,000%
T)EREEHEEE - BEBS
18 4 % P 4960,605,000(= &
— P0 4F : 28,584,000 T ) #5 %
FERNER: MBETHEBEEELD
113,608,000/ (= & — @ 4F :
118,752,000/ 7T ) IR IR IR 1T B /AW
MmEWRA o

BEEERERATF
2014/15 FEHRE
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24 Defimed contribution retirement plans

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
(the “Ordinance”). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, certain subsidiaries of the Group and
the eligible employees are each required to make monthly
mandatory contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions
to the scheme vest immediately.

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, certain employees of the Group
had completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the
employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid
MPF scheme. At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group’s
contributions to the MPF scheme and the accrued interest
thereon exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC employees are required to make contributions
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

25 ERGEEROXNRS

25 Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 4 November 2003. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme include full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and any
suppliers, consultants, agents or advisers who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, have contributed to the Company and/
or such subsidiaries.

Share options are granted to the eligible participants at a
consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that
no option may be exercised more than five years after it has
been granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option plans of the Company at any time shall not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant in excess of 1% of the number
of shares in issue as at the date of grant, are subject to
the Company issuing a circular and the approval from the
Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014/15

ARAR—_FZ=F+—ANARMK—IA
Bt BI([PE AR 8 )) - BEAAERt
HEERARAMNAER2EERTHER
o EREREEARRE R, S E MK E
RAERERSEE TR Z SRR -
BREAIZABRBREREARARFR
SHEEARBLR 2 2B ERES
TBRABSSRBE(BENIT - AT
EENBEBYFRTES) UNEFSE
U RREARB R/ HZENE AR
BRl EMHER - BE - REASRER
BRZAL-

BREDERRBIBELIRTEERZ A
E o BNBRES TRAAENARE—
AR BB - BREZTERSHE

SERAE  HBEREREHBARSF
BAFITRE - BB SIHER B
BT FRISR L BRE -

RIBRE RS &) AN R R E (B A
A BIBER R BRI TE 2 P B RETTIEEE
PREEITER AR TT 2R REEE
TRBATFEEITRDZ30% -

BT RRIEE IR 8 R AR RME
MEMBEREERTAERZEAR
HERE(BRDITR - Sl RET
82 FERcHE ) BITER Al RE BT 2 ARt 42
2 MRBERLEAHEEAT—EAH
FEBREAHEETRNEBE Z1%
AJZN 2 B ZB A 3 1 9 R S RIS AN A BB
RRBRRAE L&

BEEERERATF
2014/15 FEHRE

125



126

25 Equity-settled share-based transactions

(Continued)

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme (which
shall be payable upon exercise of the option) shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of (i)
the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
during the year are as follows:

BB TTIIR)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz
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25 EREERMIARS @)

REBBRAE IR D Z M ER AR -
HRBRM 2T EE(RETEBRER
BNEHEFS2RRE  HXERT
BER()BEOHREHBER(LAREER)
FERERZ P B ¥R R Pl 2 IEAMTE ¢ (i) BX
R EE R B BT %S % B AR
BmEMBZFHRHE K i) KO®E
BA&SERE) -

(@) RFRFEZERHGRRE G

Options granted to Directors:
— on 10 September 2004
— on 2 March 2011

Options granted to employees:

— on 2 March 2011

Options granted to suppliers/
consultants:
— on 22 February 2012

Total share options

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

"|i
Contractual life
Number of of options
options BREZ
TE#E EHER
BRYEE2ERE
— RZEEMFNA+H 1,507,912 9.2 years
— RZTE——F=A=H 4,666,667 5.0 years £
6,174,579
BYREEZIERE
- RZE——F=A=H 24,873,333 5.0 years 4F
BT HrEr, R 2 BARE
— RZE—=F
—A=+=H 13,720,000 5.0 years
BB ES 44,767,912
e EERERAD
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 28BS + HLABITTHIR)

25 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(b)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of

share options are as follows: T~
2015 2014
—EB-hf —_T—-mF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
hnEEF5 B 5 b
TEE A TEE A
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at the RER M RITIE
beginning of the year 0.2569 36,983,333 0.3663 44,767,912
Cancelled during the RE N
year 0.2829 (2,496,667) 0.2829 (6,276,667)
Expired during the year AR EIHA N/A ~EH — 3.3954  (1,507,912)
Outstanding at the end R EL G RITE
of the year 0.2551 34,486,666 0.2569 36,983,333
Exercisable at the end ~ WRELAI{T{E
of the year 0.2551 34,486,666 0.2569 36,983,333

The options outstanding at 31 March 2015 had an
exercise price in the range of HK$0.2130 to HK$0.2829
(2014: HK$0.2130 to HK$0.2829) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 1.31 years (2014:
2.28 years).
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(Expréssed in Hong, Kong/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHEBASN - HLABTTIIR)

25 Equity-settled share-based transactions

25 EREERMIARS @)

(Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on a Black Scholes model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
Black Scholes model.

The number, exercise prices, share prices and fair
values at dates of grant of the options as disclosed in
(@) and (b) above are adjusted to reflect the effect of
rights issue which were completed on 26 September
2014 (see note 27(c)(iii)).

26 Other long-term liability

On 28 December 2012, the Company, Bravo Media
Limited (“BML”) and Beauty University Management Limited
(“BUML”) entered into an investment agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which the independent
third party subscribed new shares in BUML, as representing
20% of the enlarged issued share capital of BUML, at
a cash consideration of HK$20,000,000. Further details
of this transaction have been set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 28 December 2012.

Prior to the issue of new shares under the investment
agreement, BUML was a wholly-owned subsidiary of BML
which is wholly owned by the Company. Upon the issue
of new shares in BUML on 28 March 2013, the Group’s
effective interest in BUML was reduced from 100% to
80%. This change in the Group’s interest in BUML did not
result in a loss of control over BUML and was accounted
for as an equity transaction, whereby adjustments were
made to reflect an increase in non-controlling interests
of approximately HK$3,508,000 and an increase in other
reserve of approximately HK$16,492,000 at the date of issue
of the new shares in BUML.
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26 Other long-term liability (Continued)

Pursuant to the investment agreement, in the event that
BUML fails to procure the listing of its shares or the listing
of the shares of an entity holding the business of BUML
on an internationally recognised stock exchange with the
market capitalisation size of such listing of not less than
HK$200,000,000 on or before 28 December 2017, the
independent third party shall have the right, but not an
obligation, to request the Company to purchase all of the
shares of BUML then held by the independent third party
for HK$20,000,000 (the “Put Option Right”) within 90 days
from the receipt of the written notice by BUML from the
independent third party to communicate its intent to exercise
the Put Option Right (the “Put Option Notice Period”). If the
Company fails to purchase all of the shares of BUML then
held by the independent third party for HK$20,000,000
within the Put Option Notice Period, then BML and/or the
Company shall be obligated to take up and fulfill BUML'’s
obligations in relation to the Put Option Right under the
investment agreement within 90 days from the end of the
Put Option Notice Period. The fair value of gross liability of
HK$16,444,000 of the Group and of the Company under
the Put Option Right has been accounted for as a long-
term liability in the consolidated and company statements
of financial position. The effective interest rate of the long-
term liability is 4.00% per annum. During the year ended 31
March 2015, an imputed interest on the long-term liability of
HK$684,000 (2014: HK$658,000) is recognised as finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:

BB TTIIR)

27 EXR - #EERRBRE

(a) HEEBO2EH

AEBGARDE SO 2 FINREF
RERZBRHENGAEREHR
A o A8 a8 I 4 25 A0 0 7 ) £
FRZEHFBEHIIOT

The Company b /A= |
Share-based  Convertible
Share Share payment notes Other  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses equity
o REEE  ROAREE TRRZEER Bt ZithB BafE
Note HK8 000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK8 000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HKS$'000
i3 FAT TAT FAr FAT FAT FAr TET
At1 April 2013 R-E-ZERA-A 2,483 160,072 10,732 - (16,444) (124,849) 31,994
Changes in equity for 2014, —3-ME2ERET:
Loss and total comprehenshve ~ ERBERZEERLE
loss for the year - - - - - (24.478) (24.478)
Cancellation and expiy of ERETHRER
share options - - 2,982) - - 2,982 -
Issue of convertile notes BURREE 2 - - - 195 - - 1905
Issue of shares Blkf 2700 497 21,850 - - - - DT
Share issue expenses RiEARR 270\ - (529) - - - - (329)
At 31 March 2014 W-E-RE=A=1-H 2,90 161,393 7,750 1925 (16,444) (146,345) 31,259
At1 April 2014 A-E-BERE-A 2,90 181,393 7,750 192 (16,444) (146,345) 31,259
Changes in equity for 2015 —F-RE2RET:
Loss and total comprehensie ~ ENEER2EESRLE
loss for the year - - - - - (75,679) (75,679)
Cancellaion of share options R - - (623) - - 623 -
Conversion of convertble notes BB ARZE AL Al
into ordinary shares 2 2128 29,063 - (M) - - 30470
Issue of shares Blkf 27/c)fi 13103 135,850 - - - - 148,963
Share issue expenses RAEARY 2700 - (£,266) - - - - (4,266)
At 31 March 2015 H-8-5EzR=t-R B2 3000 A 12 [6M) P r
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 28BS + HLABITTHIR)

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(i)

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014:

HK$NIi).

Share capital

Authorised and issued share capital

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each

Ordinary shares,
issued and fully
paid

At 1 April

Issue of shares

Conversion of
convertible notes
into ordinary
shares

At 31 March

Note
k3
EIE
SRR EEO0.01
Bz L@ 27(c)(i)
ZER CBT
R#ZE
MIUA—H
BT 27(c)(iii)
BRI
ATER
22
R=A=+—H

27 BEXR - HEERKRE (&)

(b) KRE
EEWAREENBE_E—F4F
A=+ ALEEZBRE(-T
—POF  TFEIT) °

() B=

() ZEEREERITRE

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled

to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

Company’s residual assets.

2015 2014
—E-AEF —E-UF
Number of Number of
shares shares
RG#A EGEE
’000 HK$’000 000 HK$’000
i FHET IR FHET
2,000,000 20,000 1,000,000 10,000
297,953 2,980 248,294 2,483
1,310,417 13,103 49,659 497
212,766 2,128 — —
1,821,136 18,211 297,953 2,980
TERFIBEAEREDTARTIREY
8- WHEERERERNHNARAF]
AREEK—R -FELTEBREAR
R FIpEEZ B REMA
BEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c)

(if)

(iii)

Share capital (Continued)
Increase in authorised share capital

By an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting on 21 August 2014, the Company’s
authorised share capital was increased from
HK$10,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each to HK$20,000,000 divided into
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by
creation of additional 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each.

Issue of shares

On 28 March 2014, the Company issued 49,658,750
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each pursuant to a placing
under generate mandate at a price of HK$0.45 per
ordinary share. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$21,818,000 were used as general working capital
of the Group.

Pursuant to a rights issue made by the Company on
26 September 2014, the Company issued 893,857,500
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price
of HK$0.10 per ordinary share on the basis of three
new shares for every existing share held (the “Rights
Issue”), resulting in net proceeds of approximately
HK$86,017,000. Details of the Rights Issue are set out
in the Company’s prospectus dated 3 September 2014.

On 7 January 2015, the Company issued 59,560,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each pursuant to a
placing under general mandate at a price of HK$0.143
per share. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$8,389,000 will be utilised for funding the potential
acquisitions to be identified by the Company.
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(c)

(ii)

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c)

(iii)

(d)

(i)

(ii)

Share capital (Continued)
Issue of shares (Continued)

On 12 March 2015, the Company issued 357,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each pursuant to a
placing under specific mandate at a price of HK$0.143
per share. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$50,281,000 will be utilised for funding the potential
acquisitions to be identified by the Company.

Nature and purpose of reserves
Share premium reserve

Under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands
where a company issues shares at a premium, whether
for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate
amount of the value of the premiums on their shares
shall be transferred to share premium account. The
application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to shareholders
of the Company out of the share premium account
unless immediately following the date on which the
distribution or the dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company will be in a position to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share capital and
share premium of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company through exchange of shares under a group
reorganisation scheme on 4 November 2003. Further
details are set out in the Company’s prospectus dated
10 November 2003.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with accounting policy set out in
note 2(v).

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to the eligible participants of
the Share Option Scheme recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(r).

Convertible notes reserve

The convertible notes reserve represents the amount
allocated to the unexercised equity component of the
convertible notes issued by the Company recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible notes in note 2(m).

PRC statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the
PRC enterprises, a PRC subsidiary of the Group, which
is a sino-foreign joint-venture enterprise, is required to
allocate at least 10% of its after-tax profit but before
dividend distribution to the general reserve until the
reserve has reached 50% of their registered capital.
The general reserve can only be used, upon approval
by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses
or increase capital. The appropriation for the year
amounted to HK$2,096,000 (2014: HK$2,210,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 28BS + HLABITTHIR)

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d)

(vi)

(vii)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
PRC statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

The enterprise expansion fund can only be used
to increase capital upon approval by the relevant
authority. Appropriation to enterprise expansion fund is
at the discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. There was no appropriation during the
year (2014: HK$NIl).

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be used
for the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’ employees.
Appropriation to the staff welfare and bonus fund is
at the discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. For Hong Kong reporting purposes,
this appropriation is charged to profit or loss and
included in other payables and accrued charges in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents (i) the difference between the
fair value of the consideration received and the carrying
amount of the net assets of BUML attributable to the
non-controlling interests and (i) the fair value of gross
liability of written put option issued by the Company
in connection with the disposal of 20% equity interest
in BUML that do not result in a loss of control by the
Group (see note 26).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2015, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$120,633,000 (2014:
HK$35,048,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(f)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes judgements to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes bank loans, trade payables,
other payables and accrued charges, amount due to a
director, amounts due to joint ventures, amounts due to
related parties, convertible notes and other long-term
liability, net of cash and cash equivalents and capital,
which comprises all components of equity.

The Directors of the Company review the capital
structure on an annual basis. As part of this review, the
Directors consider the cost of debt and cost of capital.
Based on the recommendation of the Directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B & #R &R M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

28 Financial risk management and fair values 28 £RIACLREREERAD

of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
arising from its equity investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to equity
investments, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from related parties and cash and cash equivalents.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In respect of trade receivables, management has a
credit policy in place and the exposure to the credit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are usually due
within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
As such, management considers the aggregate risks
arising from the possibility of credit losses are limited
and to be acceptable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

28 FinanCial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continuead)

(a)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on credit
risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had a certain concentration of credit
risk as 27% (2014: 24%) and 53% (2014: 58%) of
the total trade receivables was due from the largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.
Management does not expect any significant losses
from trade debtors that have not been provided for
other than impairment loss on bad and doubtful debt
as set out in note 17(b).

The Group’s other receivables at 31 March 2015
comprise mainly amounts due from business partners
and consultants, advances to staff and trade deposits
amounting to approximately HK$68,512,000 (2014:
HK$53,893,000) in total. Should the counter parties
default in settling the payments and/or providing
services, the Group may suffer financial losses.
However, the Directors consider that these amounts
are fully recoverable.

In respect of the amounts due from related parties
at 31 March 2015 amounting to approximately
HK$8,784,000 (2014: HK$9,385,000), the Group may
suffer financial losses if the related parties default in
settling the payments. However, the Directors consider
that these amounts are fully recoverable.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited as the
majority of counterparties are financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies and stated-controlled financial institutions with
good reputations.

Equity investments are in listed securities quoted on
the Stock Exchange and together with certain deposits,
are placed with securities brokers, which management
believes it is of higher credit quality.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are set out in note 17.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s Board when
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.
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(b)

ancial risk management and fair values
financial instruments (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities which are based on the
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments, computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:

Bank loans igil -t
Tradl payables EHES7E
Other payeblesand ~ ZRERBRENER

accrued charges

Amount due to a drector Eff—4E55E

Amounts de to Efinetsd
joint ventures

Amounts due to related  ENEEALA
parties

Convertile notes TaREE
Other long-term iabiity ~ Efp 48
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 28BS + HLABITTHIR)

28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(c)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
deposits, bank loans and convertible notes. Deposits
placed and borrowings issued at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge
against the interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate
profile as monitored by management is set out in (i)

below.
Interest rate profile () FAELES
The following table details the interest rate profile of the TRALAEERZ2MARTFHF
Group’s net deposits/(borrowings) (being bank deposits B (BE) (BRITFEFORM B S8
less interest-bearing financial liabilities or vice versa) at BE R2BR)2FEEE -
the end of the reporting period.
2015 2014
—2-4fF —E—-EF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BRFI=E BEERA=X
% HK$°000 % HK$’000
FET FET
Variable rate deposits: ERRES
Bank deposits and cash  $R171F X &R 1T
at bank B 0.35% 83,761 0.35% 60,134
Fixed rate borrowings:  EEEE :
Bank loans IRITER 5.46% (31,734) 6.09% (40,291)
Convertible notes Bl E S 4.11% (19,290) 4.47% (48,324)
(51,024) (88,615)
Total net deposits/ =/ (B&
(borrowings) HHRRE 32,737 (28,481)
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED EEEZERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

28 FinanCial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continuead)

(c)

(ii)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2015, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax and
decreased/increased the Group’s accumulated losses
by approximately HK$628,000 (2014: HK$451,000).
Other components of equity would not be affected
(2014: HK$NIl) by the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after-tax
and accumulated losses assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2014.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant currency
risk as most sales, income, purchases and expenses
are denominated in the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate.

Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising

from equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (see note 16).

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(e)

Equity price risk (Continued)

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell
trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the
performance of individual securities and other industry
indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs. The
portfolio is diversified in terms of industry distribution, in
accordance with the limits set by the Group.

At 31 March 2015, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 5% in equity price, with all other variables
held constant, would have increased/decreased the
Group’s profit after tax and decreased/increased
the Group’s accumulated losses by approximately
HK$4,770,000 (2014: HK$NIl). Other components of
equity would not be affected (2014: HK$NIl).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and accumulated
losses) and other components of consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock market index had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to equity price risk at the end of
the reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair
values of the Group’s equity investments would change
in accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index and that all other variables
remain constant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the equity price risk because
the exposure at the end of the reporting period
does not reflect the exposure during the year. The
Group invested in the equity securities on 27 March
2015. Prior to the date, the Group did not hold any
investments in equity securities.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

28 FinanCial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continuead)

(f)

(i)

(if)

Fair value measurement
Financial assets measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The carrying value of the Group’s financial instruments
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis shall be categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

All of the Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss with carrying amount of HK$95,400,000
(2014: HK$NIl) are categorised as Level 1.

Financial instruments carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at other than fair values are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
2015 and 2014.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B %78 FEASN

29 Commitments

(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2015 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements
are as follows:

EREERTL

Authorised but not contracted for
— acquisition of a company

Contracted but not provided for EHEMNEES L
— capital injection into a joint venture
— acquisition of property, plant and

equipment

(b) At 31 March 2015, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

Within 1 year 1FR
After 1 year but within 5 years 1F%ESFA
After 5 years 5F 1%

The Group is the lessee in respect of certain properties
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to fifteen years, with an option to
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased every one to four years
to reflect market rental. None of the leases includes

contingent rentals.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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29 &I
(@ RZZE—HE=A=+—RAFEMm
AREGEMBERRBB 2 ERAE
mT

2015 2014

— —TmF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAET

18,000 —

6,000 6,000

1,095 1,408

7,095 7,408

(b)

RZEBE—RAF=A=+—8" +7
Bz REMEZ AR RERESM
p N

2015 2014

—E-hHEF —E—mF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET

23,493 22,149

32,855 29,715

3,808 7,555

60,156 59,419
REBARKEHEATETHEZ
EFAA-HE—RVIL AP =

THEF - IREHERME GKE
BRIHE - HEeBEE —EMFIE
m- URBTSEES - SIEEER
mAAREE -

BEEERERATF
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(Expréssed in Hong, Kong/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHEBASN - HLABTTIIR)

30 Contingent liabilities 30 HAREE

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

W-E—RGER-E-—MNE=ZA=+—
H AEEHESAKAEE-

31 Material related party transactions and 31 EABEALIRZRERR
balances

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (@) FEEBAEMS
AEBFEEBRAB M (BIEN

HIABRBECNTARRESTZK
BEMESMEEENTETRS

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
Directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain highest

paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: HEBZFIE)NAT
2015 2014
—E-IfF —T-MmF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and other benefits  ¥7& « 284 & H A& 5,944 6,151

Contributions to defined contribution FLTE HFGR IR

retirement plan ETEIfR 77 69
6,021 6,220

FrEmmat ATE TRA (R M

Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (see note

146

5(b)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

31 Material related party transactions and 31 EAXABEALRBZRES )
balances (Continued)
(b) Other related party transactions (b) HMEEALRS
In addition to the financing arrangements as mentioned Br M sE19 R 22FT it 2 B & %= HE
in notes 19 and 22, the Group entered into the Sh REBRFRZETATERKR
following material related party transactions during the EALTRS
year:
The Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E—EHF —ET-HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sales of goods to a non-controlling m— B IR =
interest HEEm 27,044 17,787
Management fee income from a joint KEGEPEIBEEERA
venture - 509
Sales of goods to a non-controlling interest were M—BIEEREREE S mOER
made at similar terms as the Group grants to other SEFRTEME P 2 BUUERIED -
customers.
Balances with related parties are disclosed in the MEE AN T 2 BBRVBARRE R
statements of financial position and in notes 14, 18 and MEE14 18 K221 # 55 ©
21.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED @ #BE5EZRERLF
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32 Statement of financial position of the

Gompany

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Other payables and accrued charges
Amount due to a director

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes
Other long-term liability

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2014/15

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expréssed in Hong, Kong/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHEBASN - HLABTTIIR)

e MR ERAR MR

RN TR BARRF

2015 2014
—E—EfF —E-mEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
FREBEE
REBRAIZEKRE 4 4
REEE
JE LB 8 R B FR0R 113,440 66,229
FEfT K8 #E%&ﬁﬁwﬁll&z
B 12,482 12,399
HBehReEEY 45,916 21,748
171,838 100,376
REEE
XL O NGIE L] 2,156 1,998
HErFRIBE R ERE R 1,723 1,550
B —REEHIA 146 147
4,025 3,695
RBEEFE 167,813 96,681
EEAERABEE 167,817 96,685
FRBER
Al IRRR % 19,290 48,324
HEmREEE 17,786 17,102
37,076 65,426
BERE 130,741 31,259
BRRHE
LN 18,211 2,980
b 112,530 28,279
FERSHE 130,741 31,259

EEEZRERDT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHsEBAN - ¥HLABTTIIR)

33 Subsidiaries’ information 33 ME~BEFR
At 31 March 2015, the Company had direct or indirect RZE—RAF=—A=1—8 ' AQREE
interests in the following subsidiaries, which are private SEERTINE ARG (BLABRAA
limited companies or, if established/incorporated outside SR BB AINK L, s - BIES
Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as BMEBILABRARMER EZEHE) %
a Hong Kong private limited company. The class of shares B - BRBEEHEN - FIERNER A
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. The particulars of LEBER - ZEWNBRAN_ZE—HF=A
these subsidiaries at 31 March 2015 are set out below: =+—HZFEAT :
Proportion of effective
ownership interest
ERERRRELA

Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
ARER EXBE  CRORBERAHE B BE  IEER
Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
REBEXBBHMAL -
Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. Hong Kong 1,000 shares of USS1 each 100% - Investment holding

(3 1,000 REMREE 1 572 R1 REER
Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of USS1 each 100% - Investment holding

B 1REREE ETZRA REER
Smartime International Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
EEERREARAR Bk 1REREE 1 ZTLRA RERR
Sau San Tong China Investment Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US1 each 100% - Investment holding

(30 100REREE 1 ZTL R RERR
Wise Fortune Holdings Corp. Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding

B 10REREE 1 ZTZRA REER
Sau San Tong China Development Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment in securities and investment holding

Bk 10REBREE ZTLRA RERESRIREER
Gold Lane International Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - Inactive

Bk 100REREE1ZTLRA Irex
Victory Assets Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding

&% 100RERAE 1 £T 2R REERK
Concept de beauté Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% - Inactive

Bk 10RERAE 1 ZT2 KA gEex

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED | #SEZRERLE
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Name of company
AER

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands: (Continued)
REBRLEEHNNL - (£

L'institut Sau San Tong de la recherche scientifique

de beauté (en France) a Limited

BML

Gold Platform Limited

Creative Time Investments Limited)

(note (i) (Hs ()

Briliant Concept Co. Ltd.

Bright Rainbow Investments Ltd.

Sau San Tong (Shanghal) Limited (“SST(SH)'")
(note (i) (1)

Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute (Hangzhou)
Limited (‘SST(HZ)")

Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Development Ltd.
(‘SST(SHD)') (note (i) (#iz ()

Sau San Tong (Beijing) Investments Limited
Machiko Enterprises Inc.
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute (Shenzhen)

Limited (‘SST(SZ)')

Yield Soar Limited

Place of
operations

ey

Hong Kong
(30

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
(3

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
(30

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
(30

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
(3

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
&%

33 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRTRARRARHE

100 shares of US$1 each
100REREET ET2&H

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEI ET KRR
10 shares of US$1 each
10RERAEE1ET2RA

100 shares of US1 each
100 REREE 1 ZT RN

1 share of US$1 each
1REREGE1ZT RD

100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREE ET2 RN
1,000 shares of US$1 each
1000 R BREE 1 ZTLRA

100 shares of US$1 each
100REREE 1 ET 2 HR

10 shares of US$1 each
10REREE 1 ET 2B
100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREE 1 ZT2 RN

100 shares of US$1 each
100RERAE 1 ZTLRA

100 shares of USS1 each
100 REREE 1 ZT RS

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEI ET LR

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(Expréssed in Hong, Kong/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHEBASN - HLABTTIIR)

33 MEBLARER =)

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

ERERRRRLA

Direct Indirect ~ Principal activity

ER HE IERB

100% - Inactive
Taux

100% - Investment holding

e
REHR

100% - Investment holding

RERK

100% - Inactive
Tauy

- 100%  Investment holding

RELK

- 100%
REERH S

- 50%  Investment holding

e

Investment holding
REER

- 50%  Inactive
Taux

- 100%  Investment holding

e
REER

- 100%  Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding
RERER

- 100%  Investment holding

e

EEEZRERDT
2014/15 FE#RE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHsEBAN - ¥HLABTTIIR)

33 MEBLATRER =)

33 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

Proportion of effective
ownership interest
BRI
Place of  Particulars of issued

Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
ARER EEBE  CRORBERAGHE Bk BE  FEEER
Incorporated in the United States of America

("USA"):
REZE T8 ([Z8 )7 T -
Sau San Tong Rodeo Drive Beauty Scientific USA 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Inactive

Research Institute Limited XE 1REREE 1 Zchh iy
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
REEHmAL -
Sau San Tong Rodeo Drive Beauty Scientific Hong Kong 1 share 100% - Inactive

Research Institute (HK) Limited B 1R Tauy
Sau San Tong Beauty Figure Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Sale of health and beauty products and
BIEERAT B 10,000 %4 investment holding

HERRREAERREERR

Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 100%  Inactive
EaERERRERAT Bk 100 ik Irex
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim~ Hong Kong 18,750 shares - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services

Institute Limited B 18,750 R {3 REXARIRRE
EaEREXRRREERBRIERAT
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim ~ Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services

Institute (TST) Limited B 10,0008 % REXARGRRE
BIEREENREHBRET L (XDHE)ERAT
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim~ Hong Kong 100 shares - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services

Institute (Causeway Bay) Limited & 100/ (A REXALEERE
EIEREXRREURRET O (REE)ARAT
Sau San Tong Management Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 100%  Provision of management consultancy services
BAEERERRA Bk 100 ikt REEERARS
SST Advertising Agency Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Provision of advertising agency services
B RERBERAR Bk 10,000 %R 2 RUEEERERE
Moon Profit Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Inactive
MARERAT Bk 1R TRex
Highlight International Trading Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 100%  Inactive
SHARESERAT Eik 100R B S
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(Expréssed in Hong, Kong/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHEBASN - HLABTTIIR)

33 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 33 MEBARER #)

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

EREERRLLA
Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
ARER EXBE  CRORBERAGHE B BE IZEE

Incorporated in Hong Kong: (Continued)

REEHMAL - (8)

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim ~ Hong Kong 100 shares 100%  Inactive
Institute (Shatin) Limited 3 100 Rk
BAEERERRRERRER L (VA ERAT

Winic Management Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding

KNERERAT Bk 1R RERR

Winner Sight Limited Hong Kong 2 shares - 100%  Inactive

BEERAR 5 2R fmex

Jadepower International Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding
2HERERAR(ZN]) Bk 1R REER

BUML Hong Kong 100 shares - 80%  Provision of a propritary internet platform
ZBAE &k 100k H to promote and sell siimming beauty and

health related services and products and
investment holding

REZERETS NEERHEER
FARFREE RBRER

URRERR
Starry Crystal Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Inactive
RERRLA Bk 1R (A IRex
Wide Duo Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 80%  Inactive
TEERAT Bk 1RE&H g
Incorporated in Macau:
REFRMAT
Sau San Tong Macau Limited (note (i) Macau Registered capital of MOP25,000 - 96%  Inactive
(W) P a7 25,000 27 % grex
Incorporated in the PRC:
RAGRMmAT
HE-FEERERARI LE-E5 )mote )  ThePRC  Registered capital of US$150,000 - 50%  Provision of beauty and simming services
() G HREA150,000%T REXDRERRE
ARAREERRAR(RAAL) The PRC  Registered capital of US$5,000,000 - 51%  Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care
hE A 5,000,000 %7 products

NEHERLERER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHsEBAN - ¥HLABTTIIR)

33 MEBLATRER =)

33 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

Proportion of effective
ownership interest
BERERERENLA
Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
G EEME  CRORMRRAEE E# BE  IEEE
Incorporated in the PRC: (Continued)
RpGamas - (£)
—EERIBECHNERAR(-EEMI]) The PRC  Registered capital of HK$3,500,000 - 51%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
e HHFE 3,500,000 57 REZAREBRE
—EBBEZE(RMARAR(—EB0mM]) The PRC  Registered capital of HK$3,500,000 - 51%  Provision of beauty and simming services
e & 73,500,000 7 RUXARBERS
EREXA(LR)ERAA The PRC  Registered capital of HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
HE i E%1,000,000/57 RUEAREERS
BRE(HE)NEERANERAT The PRC  Registered capital of RMB6,000,000 - 100%  Provision of management consultancy services
le AR AR%6,000,0007 and investment holding
REEELARBRRARR
LRBZEEXERAA The PRC  Registered capital of RMB500,000 - 100%  Provision of franchise services
Gl AR AR 5000007 REMBA{ERE
HERBER(LE)ERAT The PRC  Registered capital of US$200,000 - 100%  Inactive
iles AR 200,000 % T Imex
ERRERZN( L) ERLA The PRC  Registered capital of US$500,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming senvices
b A 500,000 % T REZAREBES
EXERHA( LB BRAR The PRC  Registered capital of US$180,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and simming services
i HFAK180,000% T REZARBERE
ERMA R EEBANARAT The PRC  Registered capital of RMB20,000,000 - 100%  Inactive
hE HEARAR 200000007 fEex
Note: HiaF -

(i) Although the Group has only 50% ownership in SST(SHD),
SST(SH) and E/8—3ES, a wholly-owned subsidiary of SST(SH),
the directors concluded that the Group has dominant power to
direct relevant activities of SST(SHD) and SST(SH) on the basis
of the Group’s control over the boards of directors of respective
companies because of contractual arrangements with the other
shareholders of respective companies.

(if) These subsidiaries were established during the year ended 31

March 2015.

(i) REEEEEEMRNER AT was deregistered during the year

ended 31 March 2015.
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(i) BEANEE (£ A SST(SHD) ~ SST(SH) &
FE—FB(SSTSH) Z22 BB QA )2
50% HEAHE - RPN EEBRRHEMRE
ZENZY MESRAEAEEHEEEE
B EAEEEEBARESSEY
7 FAEE 2 SST(SHD) & SST(SH) 2 187

IEEIE
i) ZEMBRARARBZ-_ZT—AF

H

=+ —HILEFEKIL -

(i) JAREEEZEEFANERAFEHREEZC
TZ-RAE=ZA=+—BLEFERHER -

EHEEERAERLR
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liaries’ information (Continued)

The following table lists out the information relating to the
subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-controlling
interest (“NCI”). The summarised financial information
presented below represents the amounts before any inter-
company elimination.

NCI percentage FERERADL

Non-current assets ERBEE

Current assets MEEE

Current liabilities TEEE

Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8E)FE

Carrying amount of NCI FERER  REE

Revenue Wz

(Loss)/profit for the year FN(EE),/EF

Total comprehensive 2ENE(BR)
income/(l0ss) BEE

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI B E JEEMR#ER 2

(&), &F
Dividends paid to NCI BANERET T Ty
5]
Cash flows from operating REREEE
activities, net RemRg  #8
Cash flows from investing RERETREZ
activities, net REeRE F8
Cash flows from financing RERMEEE 2
activities, net Rene F8

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHsEBAN - ¥HLABTTIIR)

33 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

NCI percentage

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets/(liabilities)

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

(Loss)/profit for the year

Total comprehensive
income/(loss)

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

Cash flows from operating
activities, net

Cash flows from investing
activities, net

Cash flows from financing
activities, net

FHEREEE N

FRBEE
mEEE
mEaE
FRBAE

BE/(AfE)%E

IR 2 fRE{E

Yzs
FR(ER),E5F
2ERE(BR)

b

NEEIFEBER 2
(B8), M
EARE I 5w

e

REREESZ
Beng #8

REREERS
Reng F8

REBELDZ

Reng  #8

33 MEBLATRER =)

2014
—E-mF

SST(SH) SST(S2) SST(HZ)
and its and its and its
subsidiary, subsidiary,  subsidiary,
HE—%F —ESFRN —ESmM
SST(SH) SST(S2) SST(HZ)
RE RE RE
BUML  KIBAR] MEAR  HBAF
EBEARE LHE—FH EHAL —TEFRY —EEmM
20% 50% 49% 49% 49%
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FHET
7,234 697 3,631 1,901 244
13,423 66,261 212,921 39,393 3,342
(8,982) (565,497)  (118,717) (70,597) (26,755)
— (4,652) — — —
11,675 6,809 97,835 (29,309) (23,169)
2,335 3,405 44,358 (14,358) (11,353)
33 15,719 1,241,842 7,873 6
(5,865) (2,223) 20,840 (4,152) (2,992)
— 466 1,292 (147) (119)
(1,173) (1,111) 10,211 (2,035) (1,466)
- - 4,566 — —
(13,948) 114 6,880 (2,104) (28)
(1) — (1,736) (58) —
— — 10,257 — —

BEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

34 Events after the reporting period

(@)

On 22 May 2015, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party
to acquire a property situated in Hong Kong for a cash
consideration of HK$45,576,000.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Group sold all of its equity securities held as at 31
March 2015 at approximately HK$56,274,000, resulting
in a fair value loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$39,126,000
to be recognised in the next financial year.

On 12 June 2015, Creative Time Investments Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with an individual third
party (the “Vendor”) for the acquisition of the entire
equity interest in | Pro Skin Care Centre Limited (“iPro”)
and all debts owed by iPro to the Vendor for a cash
consideration of HK$18,000,000. iPro is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and is
principally engaged in the operation of a beauty centre
for the provision of slimming and beauty services in
Hong Kong.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BB TTIIR)

34 EHHREBR

(@)

RZE—RAFRA=-+=-H &%
EHBVE=FIVEEHHE N
B4 K& 45,576,000 T W iE — 1A
NREBZME -

RERARE  AEEBHEENR =
T—RAFE=ZA=+—HBHEZEH
B% AN 75 55 456,274,000 78 70 © EAE
BAFEFABSEZEMEEZA
F{EE518 49 39,126,000 7T + W #%
RT— AT RFERER

RZZE—RF/A+=H ' Creative
Time Investments Limited (ANA &
ZEEMBAR)H—BEABILE
=HFUTEADITLEEHE - UK
BEVUEAEEAR 2 A(iProl)
ZEERERIPrOBERE S 22
&8 - 3 £ (B /& 18,000,000/8
TLeiProA—RKREBFAMKILZ
BRAR FERELE—HESR
R MR B BIRHEERERR
75 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B & #R &R M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

35 Accounting estimates and judgements 35 EEHfhEt & M E

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used
in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and operating
results. Some of the accounting policies require the Group
to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are
inherently uncertain. The critical accounting judgements
in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described
below.

(a) Depreciation and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation and amortisation charge for the
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets,
after taking into account the estimated residual value.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation and amortisation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

EXEAAREEIERNRAZTA
vt BB S A SR 2 B s R0 B A 2

BRREATE - B BRBRAR
B AL T2 FREL G R
BT - EAAREEFRR B HE
g e

(a) HER#ENH

AEBEEEMGTRAEBRETE
ME BELRRBREVEE G
AR FR R AR E RS
A e mﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%&% Rl
WME - BERRBREVEEER
AERFRZBELREL - ATE
el kB FH FREEAITE
BHRBRZ1TBMEELEREL -
fif o] 2 A B D R SE AT AT F
AR EREMITEER  EK
5 SROMURL 2 BE R B 2 BT
RSk IERIREE -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED @ #BE5EZRERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

35 Accotinting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b)

Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be required
for certain property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, investments in subsidiaries, interests in joint
ventures and goodwill, recoverable amount of the asset
needs to be determined. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and
the value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate fair
value less costs of disposal because quoted market
prices for these assets may not be readily available.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating
to items such as level of turnover and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of items such as turnover
and operating costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability.
A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the
directors when assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the operating results in the year and in
future years.

The carrying amounts of the above assets have been
disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position and related notes.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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35 BEH{AETRHE =)

(b)

B

EEABEARE TYWE  #am MR
B BEEE RNHUBRARZE
B -RegbxziaEEFY
ZREEBER  AETEEN KD
RO ARNTFERHE
RABFEREEMREZRESE - B
MR %5 B B 2 T 5 R B R 446 P BE B
S SRS S AT ER T
EXAR - BEFEREER EEE
EZEHBREREMRRERRE
AHEEBKIREERASRE
HEFELERAE - AEEFER—
PR BER AN 2 E R EETE AT IR Bl &
BHAENEESE BRZRAEEA
X REBELAEF R ERBELE
ERAZIEEELIER

RERBEBREIDREBEESTEH®R
A B B 0 A B AT Ui [ 14 R A 4 R
mREE - EENFEHEERETP
ZEEBERFLEERIEHRE
1RE 2 B -

B EERZIBRGEEAFE
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R K AR B R B EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 B #& iR MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 3B 5ERASN + B TTIIIR)

35 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future profit will be
available against which the unused tax credit can be
utilised, management’s judgement is required to assess
the probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future
saleability of goods and management experience
and judgement. Based on this review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in this estimation.

The carrying amount of inventories has been disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
note 15.
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(c)

(d)

Frig®t
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HZBBRETARRBRANZ 2
BELHIE - ARBEEERFGERS
ZIHMBEE  LHERBER - A
ARG ZRMBRETACHERE
B ARt R A RISEDI2E o

BLERBEED AP R IARR
RERIMBERER - BARNZFE
ERIAEEEAER BB RKAN
AtERARSBRBARREE 2B
ST HERR - R IR AP R R FERR
MEMZ A BE MR A H T - B
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K FER TR BN IR T TR IR & B T I
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FERE
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36 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2015

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2015 and
which have not been adopted in these consolidated financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group:

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 cycle
FEBGEEE T SFE_T——_FRAZFENRE

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 cycle
FENEER T ——FE2-T—=-FRPZFEIE

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle
FEWERE T ——_FE2_FT—NFRABPFERE

BB TTIIR)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 B iR Mz

(Expréssed in Hong, Keng/dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B =85 -

BE-ZE-—_HF=-A=+_—H
LFEEEEMAEERERZE
ggéﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬂﬁéi

BENSAMBEHRRTZEAY  TEGF
MAGERHZRERE_T—HF=A
=t BLEFERARERANZEFHFAR
BHmRL AR 2EFTA - FEAN R Z
B-EFERATRAEEAREARL
FIA

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

REMH2EMR2FEREREX

1 July 2014
—T—mHFELHA—H
1 July 2014
—E-mELA-A

1 January 2016
—E—RF—HF—H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets

between an investor and its associate or joint venture
BB RE RS 10 REBRHERIF 28K (IB5T4) -
BREENHBERNAHAECELHAZEELETLEE

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of interests in

joint operations

BARMBWSEAE 1 RERIA)  WBREEXH s 2 St RE

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative
BB ERZE 1 RUSETAR) - #ERE

Amendments to HKAS 16, Clarification of acceptable methods of

depreciation and amortisation

ARG EF16F(ERIA) - BBWERBIHEZ IR ITE

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
AP HELERNE1SI  KEAFFEHZHWA

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BEEUBREENFON - @I A

The Directors have confirmed that the Group is in the
process of making an assessment of what the impact of
these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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1 January 2016

—E-—XF—HF—H

1 January 2016
AN

1 January 2016
—E-XF—H—H

1 January 2016
—E-RXF—H—H

1 January 2017
—2—+tF—H—H

1 January 2018
—E-N\FE—H—H

EECHER ARBEARGLBER
A REAIRRBES X ERBYAMBYE
EeRE 5 ARERREMA LGS
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A F&H®
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